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The Legislative Audit Committee
of the Montana State Legislature:

This financial audit report contains our Independent Auditor’s Report on the basic 
financial statements and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards of the state 
of Montana for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The basic financial statements were 
prepared by the State Accounting Division of the Department of Administration. The 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards was prepared by the Governor’s Office of 
Budget and Program Planning.

This report contains one recommendation related to a significant control deficiency 
over the financial statement preparation process.

Department of Administration and Governor’s Office officials reviewed the contents 
of this report. The Department of Administration’s response is on B-1. The response 
from the Governor’s Office is on B-18.

We thank the Department of Administration’s director, the State Accounting Division 
staff, and the Governor’s Office staff for their cooperation and assistance throughout 
the audit.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Tori Hunthausen

Tori Hunthausen, CPA
Legislative Auditor
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Financial Audit
State of Montana
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

March 2013	 11-01B	R eport Summary

This set of financial statements provides legislators and taxpayers with a 
summary of the state’s financial position. All operations and activities of the 
state are summarized in these statements. At the end of fiscal year 2011-12, 
Montana had approximately $451.7 million of unassigned fund balance 
in the General Fund. This represents an increase of $109.8 million from 
June 30, 2011.

Context
The basic financial statements include all of the 
state’s financial activity for the fiscal year. The 
General Fund and Federal Special Revenue 
Fund make up over 75 percent of the state’s 
governmental revenue and expenditure activity. 
The Health & Human Services and Education  
categories account for approximately 60 percent 
of the state’s governmental expenditures. 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards reports total federal expenditures in 
fiscal year 2011-12 in excess of $2.8 billion. 

An in-depth analysis of the state’s financial 
position as of June 30, 2012, can be reviewed 
in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
section of the report. Additional information 
is also provided in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements.

During fiscal year 2010-11, the General Fund 
became responsible for paying the Montana 
State Fund (MSF) workers’ compensation 
claims incurred before July 1, 1990, (Old Fund 
claims) when the Old Fund resources were 
exhausted. During fiscal year 2011-12, payment 
of Old Fund claims and administrative 
expenses required a transfer of approximately 
$10 million from the General Fund. The 
estimated claims liability as of July 1, 2012, was 
approximately $59 million and is an obligation 

In fiscal year 2011-12, the retirement systems’ 
audits disclosed material noncompliance 
with the Montana Constitution and state law 
requiring the systems to be actuarially sound. 
As of July 1, 2012, the Public Employees’ 
Retirement System – Defined Benefit 
Retirement Plan, Sheriffs’, Game Wardens’ 
and Peace Officers’, Highway Patrol Officers’, 
and the Teachers’ Retirement Systems were 
not actuarially sound.

This report also includes a recommendation 
related to a significant control deficiency over 
the financial statement preparation process.

(continued on back)

of the General Fund. In our opinion, the 
accompanying financial statements do not 
present the estimated claims liability according 
to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
because they are reported as part of the 
State Fund component unit rather than as a 
long-term obligation of the General Fund.

Results
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For a complete copy of the report (11-01B) or for further information, contact the 
Legislative Audit Division at 406-444-3122; e-mail to lad@mt.gov; or check the web site at 

http://leg.mt.gov/audit
Report Fraud, Waste, and Abuse to the Legislative Auditor’s FRAUD HOTLINE

Call toll-free 1-800-222-4446, or e-mail ladhotline@mt.gov.

Recommendation Concurrence

Concur 1

Partially Concur 0

Do Not Concur 0

Source:  Agency audit response included in 
final report.
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Chapter I – Introduction

Audit Objectives
We performed a financial audit of the state of Montana’s basic financial statements for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The objective of the audit was to express opinions 
on the fair presentation of the state’s basic financial statements in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and a related opinion on the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

The Department of Administration (department) personnel prepared the financial 
statements based on accounting information from the Statewide Accounting, Budgeting, 
and Human Resources System (SABHRS) with adjustments. Adjustments are made to 
present financial activity in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
This report contains a recommendation related to a significant control deficiency over 
the financial statement preparation process. In accordance with §5-13‑307, MCA, we 
analyzed the costs of implementing this recommendation and do not believe them to 
be significant. The prior audit did not contain any recommendations.

Introduction
Per §17-2-110, MCA, the department must consolidate every state agency’s financial 
data into an annual financial report. The department prepared the annual financial 
report, or basic financial statements, from the Statewide Accounting, Budgeting and 
Human Resources System.

The Independent Auditor’s Report is on page A-3, followed by the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, the basic financial statements, notes to the financial 
statements, the Budgetary Comparison Schedule, Pension Plan Information, Other 
Postemployment Benefits Plan Information, and accompanying notes. The Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards begins on page A-139. We issued opinions on the basic 
financial statements and an in-relation-to opinion on the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards. 

Our report on the state of Montana’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
compliance and other matters, which is required by Government Auditing Standards, 
is on page A-1. Auditing standards require us to communicate, in writing, deficiencies 
in internal control over financial reporting we identified based on an audit of basic 
financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
and considered to be significant or material. 

1
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees to prevent or detect and correct misstatements 
on a timely basis. A material weakness is one or more deficiencies in internal control, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency is one or more deficiencies in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Table 1 outlines the status 
of significant deficiencies 
and material weaknesses we 
identified during this audit.

Auditing standards also 
require us to communicate, 
in writing, material 
noncompliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
that could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. Our report on the consideration of internal control over financial reporting 
and on compliance and other matters at page A-1 reports noncompliance with the 
Montana Constitution and state law regarding actuarial soundness of certain retirement 
systems. Additional information is provided in the following paragraph.

Prior Audit Recommendations
We performed the prior audit of the state of Montana’s basic financial statements for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The prior audit did not contain any recommendations, 
but disclosed material noncompliance with the Montana Constitution and state 
law. At June 30, 2011, the Public Employees’ Retirement System – Defined Benefit 
Retirement Plan (PERS-DBRP), Game Wardens’ and Peace Officers’ (GWPORS), 
Sheriffs’ (SRS), and Highway Patrol Officers’ Retirement System (HPORS) retirement 
systems were not actuarially sound. At July 1, 2011, the Teachers’ Retirement System 
was also not actuarially sound. Actuarial soundness is defined as an amortization 
period for the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) of 30 years or less. The 
amortization periods for the unsound systems are shown in Table 2 on the next page. 
This information is also disclosed in the Public Employees’ Retirement Board (12-08A) 
and Teachers’ Retirement System (12-09A) audit reports.

Table 1
Summary of Deficiencies in Internal Control

Subject Type of Deficiency Page

Financial Statement 
Preparation Process Significant Deficiency 5

2 Montana Legislative Audit Division



Table 2
Amortization Period for Unsound Systems 

at July 1, 2011, and 2012 (in years)

Retirement System as of July 1, 2011 as of July 1, 2012

TRS 71 Infinite*

Retirement System as of June 30, 2011 as of June 30, 2012

PERS-DBRP Infinite* Infinite*

SRS Infinite* Infinite*

GWPORS Infinite* Infinite*

HPORS 48.2 49.7

*Infinite is defined as the liability does not amortize.

Source:	 Compiled by the Legislative Audit Division from reports 12-08A and 12-09A.

3
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Chapter II – Findings and Recommendations

Internal Controls

The Department of Administration’s State Accounting Division (SAD) does 
not have adequate controls to prevent, or detect in a timely manner, errors in 
the State’s basic financial statements and accompanying note disclosures.

Internal controls over financial reporting provide assurance that errors or omissions 
will be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. State accounting policy 
includes an Internal Control Guidebook providing guidance on internal control. The 
guidebook describes a significant deficiency as “a control deficiency or a combination 
of control deficiencies that adversely affects an agency’s ability to initiate, authorize, 
record, process, or report external financial data reliably in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a  
misstatement of the State of Montana’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that 
is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected.”  

The State’s basic financial statements and accompanying notes are compiled from all 
transactions on the Statewide Accounting, Budgeting, and Human Resources System 
(SABHRS) as well as other relevant data needed for proper note disclosure. SAD’s 
compilation process also uses established procedures referred to as “adjustments” to 
properly report and prepare the financial statements and note disclosures. Adjustments 
to SABHRS are necessary to properly report activity according to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP), such as elimination of activity that would otherwise 
be double reported when accumulated at the state level. SAD’s internal controls over 
the compilation process include written procedures for each necessary adjustment,  
review of the adjustment, and review of the draft statements and notes. During the 
course of the audit we identified multiple errors indicating the current internal controls 
are not adequate. Examples of identified errors are described below. These errors were 
communicated to SAD. In some cases, errors had to be communicated more than 
once. The financial statements and notes were ultimately corrected for these items.

�� Two separate adjustments made the same net asset classification change, 
thereby doubling a $158 million adjustment. This caused a misstatement on 
the Statement of Net Assets, as well as a misstatement on the Reconciliation 
of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund to the Statement of Net Assets in 
the net assets section in the reconciling columns.

�� Note 6 on Retirement Plans incorrectly stated the employee and employer 
contribution rates for the Optional Retirement Plan. We communicated this 
error to SAD, who revised the note. However, the revised note still contained 
incorrect rates which erroneously indicated noncompliance with state law.

5
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�� Note 11 on State Debt did not include a disclosure related to a $50 million 
bond refunding.

�� The combining enterprise and internal service fund cash flow statements  
reported inflows when an outflow was expected or reported an outflow when 
an inflow was expected based on row descriptions.

�� Note 18 on Component Units did not include a subsequent event related to 
a change in loan processing at the Board of Housing. We communicated 
this item to SAD, but the revised note included the disclosure as a loan loss 
contingency rather than a subsequent event. The note was moved to the 
subsequent events note after a second communication was sent.

�� On the Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of 
Activities the following misstatements were noted:
◊	 Amounts reported in the Internal Service Fund column were input 

incorrectly, resulting in multiple misstatements between $13,000 and 
$50 million.

◊	 Amounts were reported in incorrect columns.
◊	 A $160 million reconciling item was unsupported.

While the reviews performed by SAD did identify some misstatements prior to our 
review, based on the above list of errors, the reviews were not adequate to detect 
all significant errors or omissions. The written procedures used to prepare the 
reconciliations on pages A-26 and A-30 are general and do not provide the necessary 
detail for SAD personnel to accurately complete the reconciliations. SAD’s internal 
control procedures should be strengthened to ensure that adjustments are complete 
and accurate and that reviews ensure identified misstatements are corrected.

Recommendation #1

We recommend State Accounting Division strengthen internal control 
procedures over the preparation and financial reporting process. 
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LEGISLATIVE AUDIT DIVISION
	
Tori Hunthausen, Legislative Auditor	 Deputy Legislative Auditors
Deborah F. Butler, Legal Counsel	 Cindy Jorgenson
	 Angus Maciver

Room 160 • State Capitol Building • PO Box 201705 • Helena, MT • 59620-1705
Phone (406) 444-3122 • FAX (406) 444-9784 • E-Mail lad@mt.gov

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit 
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards

The Legislative Audit Committee
of the Montana State Legislature:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the state of Montana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which 
collectively comprise the state of Montana’s basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated February 14, 2013. Our report includes a reference to other auditors. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of 
the Montana State University component units and The University of Montana component units, as 
described in our report on the state of Montana’s basic financial statements. This report does not include 
the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance 
and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. The financial statements of the 
Montana State University component units and The University of Montana component units were not 
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management of the state of Montana is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the state of 
Montana’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the state of Montana’s internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the state of Montana’s 
internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
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internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we 
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined previously. However, we identified certain deficiencies 
in internal control over financial reporting, described below that, collectively, we consider to be a 
significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

1.	 The State Accounting Division of the Department of Administration is responsible for 
preparing the basic financial statements and accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
The division does not have adequate controls in place to prevent or detect in a timely manner 
errors in the State’s basic financial statements and accompanying notes. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the state of Montana’s basic financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. The identified instances of 
noncompliance are described below: 

1.	 The Public Employees’ Retirement Board administers eight defined benefit retirement 
systems. The Montana Constitution and state law require these systems to be actuarially 
sound. The actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2012, indicates the Public Employees’ 
Retirement System-Defined Benefit Retirement Plan, Sheriffs’ Retirement System, Highway 
Patrol Officers’ Retirement System, and the Game Wardens’ and Peace Officers’ Retirement 
System are not actuarially sound. 

2.	 The Teachers’ Retirement Board administers a defined benefit retirement system. The 
Montana Constitution requires this system to be actuarially sound. The actuarial valuation 
as of July 1, 2012, indicates the Teachers’ Retirement System is not actuarially sound. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of the state of Montana during the 
course of our audit work. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Audit Committee, state of 
Montana management, the Montana State Legislature, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through 
entities and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than those specified parties. 
However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Cindy Jorgenson

Cindy Jorgenson, CPA
Deputy Legislative Auditor

February 14, 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Legislative Audit Committee
of the Montana State Legislature:

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Montana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2012, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements, as follows:
 

Statement of Net Assets 
Statement of Activities 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of 

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 
Statement of Net Assets – Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets – Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets – Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets – Fiduciary Funds 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the state of Montana’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not 
audit the financial statements of the Montana State University component units and The University of 
Montana component units, which represent 10.5, 23.6, and 5.5 percent, respectively, of the assets, net 
assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements 
were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinions, 
insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the university component units, are based solely on 
the reports of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the university component units were 
not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
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as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the 
reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, Management has reported the Old Fund and 
the New Fund as the Montana State Fund component unit. The Old Fund is no longer part of the 
Montana State Fund component unit for financial reporting purposes because Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires the primary government to report the activity of the Old 
Fund since it is now legally obligated to pay the remaining liabilities. In fiscal year 2010-11 the Old 
Fund’s resources were depleted. In fiscal year 2011-12 the General Fund provided the resources to pay 
approximately $10 million in claims. Under provisions of state law, the General Fund has assumed the 
remaining estimated $59.1 million in workers’ compensation claim liabilities of the Old Fund, making 
it a general long-term debt of the primary government. GAAP requires the state to report the debt 
of a component unit as a liability if it is legally obligated to repay it. The General Fund cannot avoid 
sacrificing resources for the purpose of paying the Old Fund claims. The following table identifies the 
resulting misstatements (in thousands) on the basic financial statements. 

Statement of Net Assets  							       (Under)Overstated 
										               (in thousands)
Governmental Activities Column
Estimated Future Claim Contribution to Component Units 				     $ 59,162
Long-Term Liabilities (Due within One Year) 						     ($  8,493)
Long-Term Liabilities (Due in More than One Year) 					     ($50,669)

Component Units Column
Estimated Future Claim Contribution From Primary Government 			    $ 59,162
Long-Term Liabilities (Due within One Year) 						      $  8,493
Long-Term Liabilities (Due in More than One Year) 					      $50,669

Statement of Activities 							     
										              
Expenses Column
Governmental Activities: General Government 					      $  9,199

Component Units Column 
Payment from State of Montana 							        $  9,199

Additionally, Notes 1, 8, and 11 do not disclose the change in reporting entity and the state’s 
resulting general obligation debt for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Note 18A includes the same 
misstatements reported above in the component unit condensed financial statements in the Montana 
State Fund column. Note 18E includes information that should be disclosed in Note 8 and Note 18I 
includes information that should be disclosed in Note 11. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, except for the reporting of Old 
Fund activity as described in the preceding paragraphs, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,  
the aggregate discretely presented component units, and the General Fund of the state of Montana, as 
of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities, the state special revenue, 
the federal special revenue, the land grant, the coal severance tax, Unemployment Insurance, and 
Economic Development Bonds major funds, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
State of Montana, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As shown in Note 18 to the basic financial statements, the state of Montana changed its presentation 
for discretely presented component units. Prior to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, combining 
statements for the discretely presented components were presented as part of the basic financial 
statements rather than summarized in a note.
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the Pension Plan Information, and the 
Other Post Employment Benefits Plan Information be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the state of Montana’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audit of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole.

At June 30, 2012, the Public Employees’ Retirement System – Defined Benefit Retirement Plan, 
Game Wardens’ and Peace Officers’, Highway Patrol Officers’, and Sheriffs’ retirement systems were 
not actuarially sound. The Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability amortization period is infinite for 
the Public Employees’ Retirement System – Defined Benefit Retirement Plan, Game Wardens’ and 
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Peace Officers’, and Sheriffs’ retirement systems. The amortization period for the Highway Patrol 
Officers’ Retirement System is 49.7 years. At July 1, 2012, the Teachers’ Retirement System was also 
not actuarially sound. The Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability amortization period is infinite. The 
maximum allowable amortization period for each system is 30 years.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 14, 
2013, on our consideration of the state of Montana’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in 
assessing the results of our audit.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Cindy Jorgenson

Cindy Jorgenson, CPA
Deputy Legislative Auditor

February 14, 2013
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Governmental Activities 
The following chart depicts revenues of the governmental activities for the fiscal year: 

The following chart depicts expenses of the governmental activities for the fiscal year:   
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Business-type Activities 
The following chart depicts revenues of the business-type activities for the fiscal year: 

The following chart depicts expenses of the business-type activities for the fiscal year: 
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Schedule of Contribution Rates 
Fiscal Year 2012 

PERS-DBRP 
Member   6.900%   For members hired prior to 7/1/ 2011.                 

  7.900%   For members hired on or after 07/1/ 2011 [19-3-315(1)(a)(i) & (ii), MCA]  
Employer   7.170%   State & University                                                                                              

  7.070%   Local Governments   
  6.800%   School Districts (K-12)  [19-3-316, MCA]

State 0.100%   Local Government payroll - paid from the General Fund [19-3-319, MCA]                                                                    
0.370%   School Districts (K-12) payroll – paid from the General Fund [19-3-319, MCA] 

MPORS
Member   7.000%   Hired after 6/30/1975 & prior to 7/1/1979 & not electing GABA [19-9-710(b), MCA]                                                      

  8.500%   Hired after 6/30/1979 & prior to 7/1/1997 & not electing GABA [19-9-710 (c) MCA]
  9.000%   Hired after 6/30/1997 & members electing GABA [19-9-710(d), MCA] & 19-9-710(2),MCA]

Employer 14.410%   [19-9-703, MCA] 
State 29.370%   Of salaries paid from the General Fund [19-9-702, MCA]

FURS
Member   9.500%   Hired prior to 7/1/1997 & not electing GABA [19-13-601(2)(a), MCA]                                                                            

10.700%   Hired after 6/30/1997 & members electing GABA [19-13-601(2)(b), MCA]                                                                   
Employer 14.360%   [19-13-605, MCA] 
State 32.610%   Of salaries paid from the General Fund [19-13-604, MCA]

SRS
Member   9.245%   [19-7-403, MCA]
Employer 10.115%   [19-7-404, MCA]
State n/a

HPORS 
Member   9.000%   Hired prior to 7/1/1997 & not electing GABA                                                         

  9.050%   Hired after 6/30/1997 & members electing GABA [19-6-402, MCA]
Employer 26.150%   [19-6-404(1), MCA]                                                                      

10.180%   Of salaries paid from the General Fund [19-6-404(2), MCA]
State n/a

JRS
Member   7.000%   [19-5-402, MCA]
Employer 25.810%   [19-5-404, MCA]
State n/a
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Schedule of Contribution Rates
Fiscal Year 2012 (continued)

GWPORS 
Member 10.560 %  [19-8-502, MCA]
Employer   9.000%   [19-8-504, MCA]
State n/a

VFCA
Member n/a
Employer n/a
State 5.000%   Of fire insurance premiums - paid from the General Fund [19-17-301, MCA] 

PERS-DCRP 
Member   6.900%   For members hired prior to 7/1/2011.                                                     

  7.900%   For members hired on or after 7/1/ 2011 [19-3-315(1)(a)(i) & (ii), MCA]  
Employer   7.170%   State & University                                                                                                                       

  7.070%   Local Governments
  6.800%   School Districts (K-12) [19-3-316, MCA]

State 0.100%   Local Government payroll - paid from the General Fund                                                                         
0.370%   School Districts (K-12) payroll – paid from the General Fund [19-3-319, MCA] 

TRS
Member   7.150%  [19-20-602, MCA]
Employer   9.850%  State & University [19-20-605, MCA]

  7.470%  Contribution of total earned compensation of school district, an education coop., a county, or a  
community college. [19-20-605, MCA]

State   0.110%  Of members’ salaries [19-20-604, MCA]                                                                                                    
  2.380%  Contribution of the total earned compensation of school district and 
                 community college active members [19-20-607, MCA] 
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Pension Plan Information   
Schedules of Employer Contribution and Other Contributing Entities 

(in thousands)  

System 
Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30 
Annual Required 

Contributions
Percentage 
Contributed 

Annual Required 
State Contribution 

Percentage 
Contributed 

SINGLE EMPLOYER SYSTEMS: 

JRS (1) (2) 2012 137 1,162.61% 

HPORS (2) 2012 4,348 114.21% 269 100.00% 

MULTIPLE EMPLOYER SYSTEMS: 

PERS-DBRP 2010 132,004 60.46% 537 100.00% 
2011 144,957 54.56% 546 100.00% 
2012 148,104 53.68% 536 100.00% 

SRS 2010 7,735 72.88% 
2011 8,747 68.75% 
2012 9,512 63.37% 

GWPORS 2010 4,918 73.45% 
2011 4,903 71.85% 
2012 4,843 71.65% 

MPORS 2010 3,897 176.04% 10,932 100.00% 
2011 4,626 122.58% 11,594 100.00% 
2012 5,047 119.97% 12,274 100.00% 

FURS 2010 850 603.27% 10,871 100.00% 
2011 1,342 373.29% 11,365 100.00% 
2012 1,512 349.25% 11,797 100.00% 

VFCA – 2010 1,575 100.00% 
(Nonemployer 2011 1,596 100.00% 
Contributor) 2012 1,635 100.00% 

TRS    2010 90,947 98.30% 
2011 91,859 98.30% 

    2012 108,984 81.90% 

(1) The actuarial value of assets is greater than the actuarial accrued liabilities for FY2007- FY2010.  The funding excess is large
enough so that the sum of normal cost and the amortization of the funding excess are negative.  Common actuarial practice is to set 
the ARC at zero.  (No employer contribution would be required for these years.) 

(2) Additional years in RSI, for Single Employer Systems.   
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Summary of Defined Benefit Retirement Plans Provisions as of June 30, 2012 

Plan Member’s Highest Average Compensation (HAC) Years of Service Required and/or Age Eligible for Benefit Vesting
PERS- Hired prior to 7/1/ 2011  Hired prior to 7/1/2011 – 5 years membership service 
DBRP  – HAC during any consecutive 36 months or  –  Age 60, 5 years of membership service  

    shorter  period of total service of  –  Age 65, regardless of membership service 
    compensation paid to the member – Any age, 30 years of membership service 

Hired on or after 07/1/ 2011 Hired on or after 7/1/ 2011 
 – HAC during any consecutive 60 months –  Age 65, 5 years of membership service 
    Or shorter period of total service of  –  Age 70, regardless of membership service 
    compensation paid to the member 

MPORS Hired prior to  7/1/1977  Service retirement – 5 years membership service 
– Average monthly compensation of final   – 20 years of membership service, regardless of age 
   year of service 
   
Hired  on or after 7/1/1977  Early retirement  
– FAC for last consecutive 36 months  –  Age 50, 5 years of membership service 

FURS Hired prior to 7/1/1981 and not electing GABA  Service retirement – 5 years membership service 
– (HMC)  – 20 years of membership service, regardless of age 

Hired on or after 7/1/1981 &  electing GABA Early retirement  
– HAC during any consecutive 36 months  – Age 50, 5 years of membership service.  

SRS Hired prior to 7/1/2011 Service retirement – 5 years membership service 
 – HAC during any consecutive 36 months  – 20 years of membership service regardless of age 

Hired on or after 7/1/2011  Early retirement  
 – HAC during any consecutive 60 months  – Age 50, 5 years of membership service, actuarially reduced   
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Summary of Defined Benefit Retirement Plans Provisions as of June 30, 2012 (continued)

Plan Member’s Highest Average Compensation (HAC) Years of Service Required and/or Age Eligible for Benefit Vesting
HPORS  – HAC during any consecutive 36 months Service retirement – 5 years membership service 

 – 20 years of membership service, regardless of age 
     
Early retirement  

   – 5 years of membership service, actuarially reduced from age 60   
JRS Hired prior to 7/1/1997 and non-GABA Service retirement – 5 years membership service 

 – monthly compensation at time of retirement  – Age 60, 5 years of membership service 

Hired on or after 7/1/1997 or electing GABA  Involuntary retirement
 – HAC during any consecutive 36 months   – Any age with 5 years of membership service – involuntary 
   (relates directly to monthly benefit formula)      termination, actuarially reduced 

GWPORS Hired prior to 7/1/2011  Service retirement – 5 years membership service 
–  HAC during any consecutive 36 months  – Age 50, 20 years of membership service; 

Hired on or after 7/1/2011  Early retirement (reduced benefit)  
– HAC during any consecutive 60 months  – Age 55, vested members who terminate employment prior 

    to 20 years of membership service 
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Summary of Defined Benefit Retirement Plans Provisions as of June 30, 2012 (continued)

Plan Member’s Highest Average Compensation (HAC) Years of Service Required and/or Age Eligible for Benefit Vesting
VFCA Normal retirement – 10 years of credited service 

 – Age 55, 20 years of credited service (full benefit) 
 – Age 60, 10 years of credited service (partial benefit) 
     
Additional Benefits 
 – As of April 25, 2005, all retirees receive a benefit equal to $7.50  
    per month for each year of credited service, up to 30 years of    
    Service (maximum benefit $225) 

 – Members who retire on or after 7/1/2011 and have greater than  
    30 years of credited service will receive $7.50 per month for  
    each additional year of credited service after 30 years if the 
    pension trust fund is actuarially sound, amortizing any unfunded  
    liabilities in 20 years or less. This determination will be made  
    annually and a member’s benefit will remain capped at $225  
    a month (30 years of credited service) if the amortization 
    period grows to greater than 20 years 

TRS FAC during any consecutive 3 years. Normal retirement: – 5 years membership service 
 – Age 60, 5 years of service, or any age with at least with at 
    least 25 years of service. Vested employees may employees  
    may retire at or after age 50 and receive reduced benefits. 

 – Vested employees may retire at or after  
      age 50 and receive reduced benefits. 
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Summary of Defined Benefit Retirement Plans Provisions as of June 30, 2012 (continued)

Plan Monthly Benefit Formula Guaranteed Annual Benefit Adjustment (GABA) Minimum Benefit Adjustment (Non-GABA) 
PERS- For members hired prior to July 1, 2011: For retired members who have been retired
DBRP If less than 25 years of membership service year equal to 

the greater of     - 3.0% for members hired before July 1, 2007 
- 1/56 of HAC multiplied by years of service credit    - 1.5% for members hired on or after July 1, 2007 

  - or the actuarial equivalent of double the  
    member’s regular contributions plus  .
    interest plus the actuarial equivalent of any 
    additional contributions plus interest 

If 25 years of membership service or more 
- 1/50 of HAC multiplied by years of service credit 

   - or the actuarial equivalent of double the   
     member’s regular contributions plus interest 
     plus the actuarial equivalent of any additional 
     contributions plus interest 
     . 
For members hired on or after July 1, 2011: 
If less than 10 years of membership service, the 

 greater of 
  - 1.5% of HAC multiplied by years of service credit  
  - or the actuarial equivalent of double the members   
  - regular contributions plus the interest plus the    
  - actuarial equivalent of any additional    
  - contributions plus interest.   
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Summary of Defined Benefit Retirement Plans Provisions as of June 30, 2012 (continued)
    
Plan Monthly Benefit Formula Guaranteed Annual Benefit Adjustment (GABA) Minimum Benefit Adjustment (Non-GABA)
PERS- If between 10 and 30 years of membership service,   
DBRP the greater of   

  - 1/56 of HAC multiplied by years of service credit  
  - or the actuarial equivalent of double the members   
  - regular contributions plus the interest plus the   
  - actuarial equivalent of any additional   
  - contributions plus interest.   
   
If 30 Years of membership service or more, the  

 Greater of 
  - 1/50 of HAC multiplied by years of service credit  
  - or the actuarial equivalent of double the members   
  - regular contributions plus the interest plus the   
  - actuarial equivalent of any additional   
   
For members that retired prior to October 1, 2011  
   The actuarial equivalent of the accrued portion of the   
   Service retirement benefit that would have been    
   payable to the member commencing at age 60 or upon  
   Completion of 30 years of membership with the   
   exception that the benefit must be reduced by   
   multiplying 0.5% for the first  60 months and 
   0.3% for the next 60 Months by the number of months  
   by which the Retirement date proceeds the 
   date at which the member would have attained age 60  
   or completed 30 years of membership service  
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Summary of Defined Benefit Retirement Plans Provisions as of June 30, 2012 (continued)

Plan Monthly Benefit Formula Guaranteed Annual Benefit Adjustment (GABA) Minimum Benefit Adjustment (Non-GABA)
PERS-    For members hired  on or before June 30, 2011
DBRP    The actuarial equivalent of the accrued portion of   

   the service retirement benefit that would have been  
   payable to the member commencing at age 60 or upon  
   completion of 30 years of membership service with the  
   exception that the benefit must be reduced using    
   actuarially equivalent factors based on the most.  
   recent valuation 

For members hired  on or after June 30, 2011   
   The actuarial equivalent of the accrued portion of  
   the service retirement benefit that would have been  
   payable to the member commencing at age 65 with the  
   exception that the benefit must be reduced using    
   actuarially  equivalent factors based on the most  
   recent valuation 

MPORS Hired before, July 1, 1977 Hired after June 1, 1997 or those electing GABA Hired before July 1, 1997 and not  
 – 2.5% of average monthly compensation of final  – After the member has completed 12 full months electing GABA 
    year of service multiplied by years of      of retirement, the member’s benefit increases  – the monthly retirement, disability or survivor’s 
    service credit     by a maximum of 3% each January, inclusive       benefit may not be less than 1/2 the  

    of all other adjustments to the member’s benefit.     compensation of a newly confirmed police    
Hired on or after , July 1, 1977          officer  in the current fiscal year  in      
 – 2.5% of FAC  multiplied by  years of service credit       the city or  town from which the member was  
        last employed. 
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Summary of Defined Benefit Retirement Plans Provisions as of June 30, 2012 (continued)
    
Plan Monthly Benefit Formula Guaranteed Annual Benefit Adjustment (GABA) Minimum Benefit Adjustment (Non-GABA) 
FURS Members hired prior to July 1, 1981 and not For retired members who became active  If hired before July 1, 1997 and member did  

electing GABA are entitled to the greater of members on or after July 1, 1997 not elect GABA  
 – 2.5% of HMC times year of service credit;    – Who elected to be covered under   – the monthly retirement, disability or survivor’s
    (1) if less than 20 years of service, 2%       this provision and who have been      benefit may not be less than ½ the 
         of HMC multiplied by years of service credit       retired at least 12 months, GABA     compensation of a newly confirmed 
    (2) if greater than or equal to 20 years of service,       will be made each year equal to 3%     firefighter employed by the city that last 
         credit, 50% of HMC plus 2% of HMC multiplied            employed the member. 
         by years of service credit in excess of 20 years.         
          
Members hired on or after July 1, 1981 and  
those electing GABA           
 – 2.5% of HAC multiplied by years of service credit.          

SRS  – 2.5% of HAC multiplied by years of service credit For retired members who have been retired  
At least 12 months, GABA equal to 
  – 3.0% for members hired before July 1, 2007  

    –  1.5% for members hired on or after July 1, 2007.   
GWPORS  – 2.5% of HAC multiplied by years of service credit For retired members who have been retired  

at least 12 months, GABA will  be  
made each year equal to 
 – 3.0% for members hired before July 1, 2007 

   – 1.5% for members hired on or after July 1, 2007   

A
-88



Summary of Defined Benefit Retirement Plans Provisions as of June 30, 2012 (continued)

Plan Monthly Benefit Formula Guaranteed Annual Benefit Adjustment (GABA) Minimum Benefit Adjustment (Non-GABA) 
HPORS  – 2.5% of HAC multiplied by years of service GABA will be made each year equal to 3% Hired prior to July 1, 1997 

 – For retired members who became active  – Monthly benefits for non-GABA members are 
    members on or after July 1, 1997       increased each July when they fall below a   
 – Those who elected to be covered under     statutorily guaranteed minimum.  
    this provision and who have been retired   – Any annual increase is limited to 5.0% over  
    at least 12 months     the current benefit and may not exceed 60% 

    of the current base salary of a probationary officer 
 – For non-GABA members who retired prior to 
    July, 1 1991, and meet eligibility requirements, a 
    lump sum payment will be made each year based 

        on the increase in the Consumer Price Index 
JRS  – 3.1/3% per year of current salary   GABA will be made each year equal to 3% Hired prior to July 1, 1997 

 –  or (HAC) for the first 15 years of service    – For retired members who became active  – Who did not elect GABA, the current
     credit and 1.785% per year of the current      members on or after July 1, 1997       salary of an active member in the same 
     salary   – Those who elected to be covered under     position is used to  recalculate the 
 –  or (HAC) for service credit over 15 years       this provision and who have been retired      monthly benefits 

    at least 12 months       
VFCA  – $7.50 per month for each year of credit for service    

–  For VFCA members retiring prior to July 1, 2011   
    maximum service is 30 years.   
–  For VFCA members retiring on or after July 1, 2011, l   
    will receive $7.50 per month for each additional year    
    of credited service after 30 years.   
– Restriction: A retiree’s benefit will be capped at or   
    reduced to, $225 a month (30 years of credited    
    service) if at any time the amortization period    
    becomes greater than 20 years.   
 – Age 55 with 20 years of service credit  
    or age 60 with 10 years of service credit.     
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Summary of Defined Benefit Retirement Plans Provisions as of June 30, 2012 (continued)

Plan Monthly Benefit Formula Guaranteed Annual Benefit Adjustment (GABA) Minimum Benefit Adjustment (Non-GABA)
TRS  – 1.6667% of average final compensation GABA of 1.5% is payable each January 

    (AFC) per year of service   – if the retiree has received at least 36  
    monthly retirement benefit payments  
    prior to January 1 of the year in which  
    the adjustment is to be made. 

 - Final Average Compensation (FAC), Highest Monthly Compensation (HMC), Highest Average Compensation  (HAC), Guaranteed Annual Benefit Adjustment  (GABA) 
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B. Operating Leases 

Primary government rental payments for operating leases in fiscal year 2012 totaled $21,306,714. Future rental 
payments under operating leases are as follows (in thousands): 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type 
Activities

2013 $ 21,212 $    555 
2014 18,389 549 
2015 15,570 522 
2016 10,195 478 
2017 10,599 478 
2018-2022 18,939 827 
2023-2027 3,439 - 

   Thereafter 862 - 

Total future rental payments $ 99,205 $ 3,409 

NOTE 11. STATE DEBT 

A. General Information 

The State has no constitutional limit on its power to issue obligations or incur debt, other than a provision that no 
debt may be created to cover deficits incurred because appropriations exceeded anticipated revenues.  No state debt 
shall be created unless authorized by a two-thirds vote of the members of each house of the legislature or a majority 
of the electors voting thereon. The Board of Examiners (consisting of the Governor, Secretary of State, and Attorney 
General) is authorized, pursuant to various enabling acts, to issue bonds and notes of the State. 

B. Short-term Debt 

The Board of Examiners, upon recommendation of the Department of Administration, may issue notes in 
anticipation of the receipt of taxes and revenues. No notes may be issued to refund outstanding notes. 

During fiscal year 2012, the State issued two revenue anticipation notes one of which will be used for wastewater 
projects. The proceeds of the other revenue anticipation note was used for water system improvements and to fund 
local governments to rehabilitate water systems. The State issued two bond anticipation notes and one revenue 
anticipation note during fiscal year 2011, that were active in fiscal year 2012, which pertained to drinking water and 
irrigation. The proceeds were used for water system improvements and to loan funds to local governments to 
rehabilitate irrigation and water systems. The following schedule summarizes the activity for the year ended June 
30, 2012 (in thousands):  

Beginning Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance 
BANs     
Irrigation – 2011A 1,179 21 - 1,200 
Irrigation – 2011B 1 799 315 485 
RANS     
Drinking Water – 2011A 850 150 1000 -
Drinking Water – 2011B - 550 - 550 
Wastewater – 2011C - 1,900 1,900 -
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The Board of Investments (BOI) of the State of Montana is authorized to issue Intermediate Term Capital 
(INTERCAP) bonds under the Municipal Finance Consolidation Act. These bonds may not aggregate more than 
$190 million as amended by the 2007 Legislature. The purpose of the bonds is to provide funds for the BOI to make 
loans to eligible government units. The bonds are limited obligations of the BOI, payable solely from (1) repayments 
of principal and interest on loans made by the BOI to participating eligible governmental units, (2) investment 
income under the indenture, and (3) an irrevocable pledge by the BOI. The BOI has no taxing power. Bondholders 
may elect to have their bonds purchased by the trustee on March 1 of each year until maturity. These issues are 
considered to be demand bonds and are included in short-term debt. The amounts issued and outstanding at June 30, 
2012, were as follows (in thousands): 

Series
Amount
Issued 

Balance
June 30, 2012 

1997 10,000 $  9,210
1998 12,500 11,875
2000 15,000 14,470
2003 15,000 14,525
2004 18,500 18,200
2007 15,000 14,775
2010 12,000 11,975
Total     $  95,030 

The following schedule summarizes the activity relating to the demand bonds during the year ended June 30, 2012 
(in thousands): 

Beginning Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance 
Demand bonds $   95,530 $         - $      500 $   95,030 
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C. Long-term Debt 

The full faith, credit, and taxing powers of the State are pledged for the payment of all general obligation debt. 
Revenue and mortgage bonds are secured by a pledge from the facilities to which they relate and by certain other 
revenues, fees, and assets of the State and the various colleges and universities. Primary government bonds and 
notes outstanding at June 30, 2012, were as follows (in thousands): 

Principal Payments 

Governmental Activities Series
Amount
Issued 

Interest
Range (%) (1)

Fiscal Year
2013 

In Year of
Maturity (2)

Balance
June 30, 2012 

General obligation bonds       
Drinking Water Revolving Fund (3) 1998F $    3,065 3.6-4.85 $   175 185 (2014) $       360 
Long-Range Bldg Program 2002B 10,475 3.35-4.7 535 480 (2014) 1,015 
Hard Rock Mining Reclamation 2002C 2,500 3.5-4.7 115 200 (2023) 1,685 
Long-Range Bldg Program 2003A 9,730 2.37-4.0 480 655 (2024) 6,425 
Energy Conservation Program (5) 2003B 1,250 2.0-3.0 140 145 (2014) 285 
Water Pollution Control Revolving 
 Fund (3) 2003D 2,730 2.0-3.1 185 190 (2014) 375 
Drinking Water Revolving Fund (3) 2003E 1,675 2.0-3.1 110 115 (2014) 225 
Long-Range Bldg Program Refunding 2003G 26,610 2.0-5.0 1,950 2,310 (2017) 10,630 
Long-Range Bldg Program 2004B 3,125 3.0-4.75 180 170 (2025) 1,985 
Long-Range Bldg Program Refunding 2005A 14,945 3.0-5.25 1,385 1,205 (2019) 10,580 
Long-Range Bldg Program 2005B 1,670 3.25-4.3 70 120 (2026) 1,300 
Energy Conservation Program (5) 2005C 2,500 3.25-4.0 260 290 (2016) 1,100 
CERCLA Program (6) 2005D 2,000 3.25-4.3 85 140 (2026) 1,550 
Drinking Water Revolving Fund (3) 2005F 3,875 4.0-4.75 245 350 (2021) 2,630 
Water Pollution Control Revolving 
 Fund (3) 2005G 2,110 4.0-4.75 135 170 (2019) 1,060 
Long-Range Bldg Program Refunding 2005H 10,055 3.0-5.0 930 1,300 (2020) 8,805 
Long-Range Bldg Program 2006A 31,350 4.0-5.0 1,530 1,930 (2027) 24,815 
Energy Conservation Program (5) 2006B 3,750 4.0-6.0 230 330 (2022) 2,780 
CERCLA Program (6) 2006C 1,000 4.0 100 120 (2017) 550 
Renewable Resource Program (4) 2006D 950 5.6-6.0 55 90 (2022) 720 
Long-Range Bldg Program Refunding 2007A 16,740 4.25-5.0 1,935 2,465 (2018) 13,090 
Long-Range Bldg Program 2007D 11,720 4.375-4.75 460 3,865 (2028) 10,060 
Long-Range Bldg Program 2008D 3,100 3.375-4.35 120 220 (2028) 2,560 
Long-Range Bldg Program Refunding 2010A 20,220 2.0-4.0 3,790 710 (2021) 13,885 
Drinking Water Revolving Fund       
     Refunding (3) 2010B 5,400 2.0-4.0 420 110 (2026) 4,920 
Water Pollution Control Revolving       
     Fund Refunding (3) 2010C 6,450 2.0-4.0 480 210 (2026) 5,920 
Trust Land 2010F 21,000 1.55-4.9 835 1,450 (2031) 20,400 
Long-Range Bldg Program 2010G 550 1.5-2.7 55 60 (2021) 510 
Renewable Resource Program       
     (Taxable) (4) 2010H 1,000 1.0-3.85 95 115 (2021) 930 
Long-Range Bldg Program Refunding 2011D 5,755 3.0 – 3.25 40 720 (2023) 5,755 
  Total general obligation bonds  $ 227,300  $ 17,125  $156,905 
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Principle Payments 

Governmental Activities Series
Amount
Issued 

Interest
Range (%)(1)

Fiscal Year
2013      

In Year of
Maturity (2)

Balance
June 30, 2012 

Special revenue bonds       
State Hospital Project (7) 1997 $  25,915 4.0-5.05 $  1,170 1,820 (2022) 14,750
Renewable Resource Program (8) 2001B 1,750 5.2-7.1 90 140 (2020) 910
Renewable Resource Program (8) 2001E 885 2.1-4.85 45 50 (2016) 185
Renewable Resource Program (8) 2001F 900 3.3-6.2 45 75 (2022) 575
Developmental Center Project 
 Refunding (7) 2003 11,510  3.0-5.0 745 970 (2019) 5,960 
Renewable Resource Program (8) 2003A 3,000 1.05-4.05 135 215 (2024) 2,050
U.S. Highway 93 GARVEES (9) 2005 122,795 3.65-5.19 8,035 8,835 (2015) 25,290
U.S. Highway 93 GARVEES (9) 2008 44,670 3.5-5.0 2,595 3,925 (2023) 35,020
Broadwater Power Proj Refunding (8) 2010A 10,180 3.0-4.0 1,360 1,605 (2018) 8,855
Renewable Resource Program (8) 2010B 1,730 2.0-3.6 70 115 (2031) 1,660
Renewable Resource Program 
     (Taxable) (8) 2010C 6,720 0.9-4.2 335 1,280 (2031) 6,395
U.S. Highway 93 GARVEE (9) 2012 50,915 0.9-1.9  - 11,040 (2020) 50,915 
  Total special revenue bonds  $ 280,970  $ 14,625  $152,565 

Notes payable 
Water Conservation (Petrolia 
  Project) (10)  50  5.0 2 2 (2016) 10 
Middle Creek Dam Project (11)  3,272 8.125 60 222 (2034) 2,477
Tongue River Dam Project (12)  11,300 - 290 290 (2038) 7,533
  Total notes payable  $   14,622  $     352  $   10,020 

  Subtotal governmental activities, 
   before deferred balances 319,490 
  Deferred amount on refunding   (1,420)
  Unamortized discount  (22)
  Unamortized premium  12,865
Total governmental activities  $ 522,892  $ 32,102  $ 330,913 

Business-type Activities 
Bonds/notes payable       
Economic Development Bonds (13) 
Municipal Finance Consolidation Act 
 Bonds (Irrigation Program) (14) 1988 $    4,976  6.60-7.75 $      65 70 (2014) $       135 
  Total bonds/notes payable  4,976  65  135 
Total business-type activities  $    4,976  $      65  $       135 

(1) The interest range is over the life of the obligation. 

(2) Year of maturity refers to fiscal year. 

(3) These bonds provide matching funds to enable the State to obtain capitalization grants from the U.S Environmental Protection 
Agency for water system development loans to state political subdivisions. 

(4) The general obligation Renewable Resource Program Bonds are secured additionally by a pledge of, and payable from, 
certain coal severance taxes. The bonds are also secured by a pledge of loan repayments from loans made from the bond 
proceeds. 

(5) Bonds issued for financing the design, construction, and installation of energy conservation projects at various state buildings.

(6) The CERCLA (Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act) Program Bonds were issued for the 
purpose of financing the costs of State of Montana participation in the remedial actions under Section 104 of the CERCLA 42 
United States Code Sections 9601-9657, and State of Montana costs for maintenance of sites under CERCLA. The CERCLA 
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Bonds are secured additionally by a pledge of monies received by the State as cost recovery payments and revenues derived 
from the resource indemnity and groundwater assessment tax in the event cost recovery payments are insufficient. 

(7) Facility Finance Authority loan to the Department of Public Health and Human Services for the Montana Developmental Center 
Project and the Montana State Hospital Project. 

(8) Issued by the Department of Natural Resources and Conservation and backed by a pledge of coal severance taxes and 
project revenues. 

(9) The U.S. Highway 93 GARVEES (Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicles) Bonds were issued for the purpose of improving a 
44.8-mile stretch of U.S. Highway 93. Repayment of the bonds is secured by a pledge of certain federal aid revenues. 

(10) Loans obtained from Farmers Home Administration for the purpose of rehabilitating the Petrolia Reservoir and Canal in the 
vicinity of Winnett, Montana (Petrolia Project). A portion of the revenues generated by the facilities is pledged for repayment of 
the loans. 

(11) U.S. Bureau of Reclamation loan to Montana Department of Natural Resources & Conservation.  

(12) Northern Cheyenne Tribe loan to the Montana Department of Natural Resources & Conservation. The loan will not accrue 
interest and will be repaid over 39 years. Loan repayment is secured by the issuance of a coal severance tax bond to the tribe.

(13) Economic Development Bonds & Municipal Finance Consolidation Act Bonds – This program is directed by the Board of 
Investments, which is attached to the Department of Commerce for administrative purposes. The program assists Montana’s 
small businesses and local governments in obtaining low-cost financing. 

(14) These bonds were issued to obtain funds for the Board of Investments, State of Montana, to purchase the refunding bonds of 
participating Irrigation Districts for the purpose of prepaying the U.S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Reclamation Projects
Loans. The Irrigation Bonds, and the interest thereon, are payable solely from the collection of a special tax or assessment, 
which is a lien against real property in the Irrigation District. The Irrigation Bonds are limited obligations of the Board of 
Investments, due to an irrevocable pledge to lend money for deposit by the trustee of the Irrigation District Pooled Loan 
Program Reserve Account E in an amount equal to any deficiencies therein, on any payment date. The indenture does not 
permit the issuance of additional bonds. 

D. Debt Service Requirements 

Primary government debt service requirements at June 30, 2012, were as follows (in thousands): 

Governmental Activities
   

General Obligation Bonds Special Revenue Bonds Notes Payable
Year Ended 

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 
2013 $ 17,125 $   6,331 $ 14,625 $  6,466 $    353 $    45
2014 17,690 5,690 15,260 5,803 355 45
2015 15,905 5,043 15,925 5,113 368 45
2016 14,650 4,398 16,745 4,401 370 45
2017 14,975 3,752 17,405 3,691 371 45
2018-2022 44,620 11,430 63,820 8,107 1,910 224
2023-2027 22,390 4,332 7,075 728 2,017 224
2028-2032 9,550 626 1,710 104 2,156 224
2033-2037 - - - - 1,830 90
2038-2042 - - - - 290 -

 Total $156,905 $ 41,602 $152,565 $ 34,413 $ 10,020 $  987 

Business-type Activities

Economic Development Bonds
Year Ended

June 30 Principal Interest 
2013 $    65 $ 8
2014 70 2

 Total $  135 $   10 
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E. Summary of Changes in Long-term Liabilities Payable 

Primary government long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows (in thousands): 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Amounts
Due Within 
One Year 

Amounts
Due In More 

Than One 
Year 

Governmental activities      
Bonds/notes payable 
 General obligation bonds $  174,335 $  5,755 $ 23,185 $  156,905 $    17,125 $  139,780
 Special revenue bonds 169,220 - 16,655 152,565 14,625 137,940
 Notes payable 10,369 - 349 10,020 353 9,667

353,924 5,755 40,189 319,490 32,103 287,387 
 Deferred amount on refunding (3,514) 2,094 - (1,420) - (1,420)
 Unamortized discount (28) 6 - (22) - (22)
 Unamortized premium 7,790 5,075 - 12,865 - 12,865 
  Total bonds/notes payable 358,172 12,930 40,189 330,913 32,103 298,810 
Other liabilities 
 Lease/installment purchase payable 1,536 - 813 723 359 364
     Operating lease rent holiday 83 116 34 165 34 131
 Compensated absences payable (1) 92,830 49,787 48,264 94,353 49,471 44,882
 Early retirement benefits payable (1) 26 48 58 16 2 14

Arbitrage rebate tax payable (1) 108 11 12 107 1 106
 Estimated insurance claims (1) 32,362 46,385 47,550 31,197 13,594 17,603
     Pollution Remediation 523,338 84,780 58,931 549,187 100,976 448,211
 OPEB implicit rate subsidy (2) 155,707 38,358 - 194,065 - 194,065
  Total other liabilities 805,990 219,485 155,662 869,813 164,437 705,376 
Total governmental activities 
 Long-term liabilities $1,164,162 $    232,415 $    195,851 $1,200,726 $  196,540 $1,004,186 

Business-type activities       
Bonds/notes payable 
 Economic Development Bonds $     195 $         - $         60 $       135 $      65 $       70
  Total bonds/notes payable 195 - 60 135 65 70 
Other liabilities 
     Lease/installment purchase payable 382 - 79 303 81 222
 Compensated absences payable 1,553 857 779 1,631 847 784

Arbitrage rebate tax payable 11 - 2 9 - 9
 Estimated insurance claims 20,899 1,041 - 21,940 10,203 11,737
 OPEB implicit rate subsidy (2) 2,746 1,485 825 3,406 - 3,406
  Total other liabilities 25,591 3,383 1,685 27,289 11,131 16,158 
Total business-type activities 
 Long-term liabilities $ 25,786 $  3,383 $  1,745 $   27,424 $  11,196 $  16,228 

(1) The compensated absences liability attributable to the governmental activities will be liquidated by several of the governmental 
and internal service funds. The early retirement benefits payable will be liquidated by the general, state special revenue, and
federal special revenue funds. The arbitrage rebate tax payable will be liquidated by debt service funds. The Employee Group 
Benefits and Administration Insurance internal service funds will liquidate the estimated insurance claims liability. 

(2) The OPEB plan allows retirees to participate, as a group, at a rate that does not cover all the related costs. This results in the 
reporting of an “implicit rate” subsidy in the related financial statements. While this liability is disclosed for financial purposes, it 
does not represent a legal liability of the State, or any of its component units. 
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F. Refunded and Early Retired Debt 

Prepayments 
The Department of Natural Resources and Conservation (DNRC) used current available resources to make the 
following prepayments on outstanding bonds: $395,000 of general obligation series 1998F; $350,000 of general 
obligation series 2005G; $545,000 of special revenue series 2001C for payoff; $345,000 of special revenue series 
2001E; $270,000 of special revenue series 2004B. 

The Department of Transportation (DOT) used current available resources to make the following prepayment on an 
outstanding bond: $450,000 of special revenue series 2005. 

Current Refundings 
On July 19, 2011, the DNRC issued general obligation series 2011D Bonds in the amount of $5,755,000 to make an 
advanced refunding of $5,585,718 series 2002B Bonds. The refunding resulted in an economic gain of $221,375 and 
a difference in cash flow requirements of $220,839. On May 17, 2012, the DOT issued Grant Anticipation Notes 
(Highway 93 Advance Construction Project) (GARVEES) in the amount of $50,915,000 to make advanced 
refunding of the 2005 GARVEE Bonds. The refunding resulted in an economic gain of $3,087,267 and a difference 
in cash flow of $3,082,206. 

Defeased Debt Outstanding 
The State of Montana has defeased certain general obligation and special revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of 
new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the 
trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the financial statements. At June 30, 
2012, $63,635,000 of bonds outstanding was considered defeased. 

G. No-Commitment Debt 

Information is presented below for financing authorities participating in debt issues. The State has no obligation for 
this debt. Accordingly, these bonds and notes are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. 

Montana Board of Investments (BOI) 
Under the Economic Development Act, the BOI is authorized to issue stand-alone industrial revenue bonds to 
finance projects for qualifying borrowers. Assets and revenues of the borrower are pledged to repay the bonds. At 
June 30, 2012, industrial revenue bonds outstanding aggregated $151.4 million. 

The BOI is also authorized to issue Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (QZAB) under the Municipal Finance 
Consolidation Act. The revenues, and in some cases, the taxing power of the borrower are pledged to repay the 
bonds. At June 30, 2012, QZAB debt outstanding aggregated $10.1 million. 

The BOI is also authorized to issue Qualified School Construction Bonds (QSCB) under the Municipal Finance 
Consolidation Act.  The revenues of the borrower are pledged to repay the bonds.  At June 30, 2012, QSCB debt 
outstanding aggregated $8.0 million. 

The industrial revenue bonds, QZAB debt, and QSCB debt issued by the BOI does not constitute a debt, liability, 
obligation, or pledge of faith and credit of the State of Montana.  

Beginning Farm Loan Program 
The Montana Department of Agriculture is authorized to request issuance of bonds by the BOI to finance projects 
for beginning farmers within the State, if it appears, after a properly noticed public hearing, that the project is in the 
public interest of the State. These non-recourse, industrial development revenue bonds do not constitute a debt, 
liability, or obligation of the State of Montana. The amount issued and outstanding at June 30, 2012, was as follows: 
Hershberger Project – issued $129,412, outstanding $86,801. 
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H. Estimated Pollution Remediation Obligation  

Estimated pollution remediation obligations are obligations to address the current or potential detrimental effects of 
existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation activities such as site assessments and cleanups.  The 
estimates were derived using the expected cash flows method as well as technical estimates from record of 
decisions, consent decrees and/or settlement agreements.  Factors influencing the estimates are not known at this 
time.  Prospective recoveries from other responsible parties may reduce the State’s obligation.

The State’s estimated pollution remediation liability as of July 1, 2011 was estimated at $523.3 million.  The 
liability as of June 30, 2012 was $549.2 million.  Of this liability, $224.8 million resulted in settlement agreements 
to provide restoration of natural resources, water supplies and natural resource-based recreational opportunities up to 
the settlement amount; $276.2 million is based on decrees or settlements for remediation activities.  Other estimated 
liabilities have been recorded for soil and PCB contamination.  The estimated pollution remediation liability was 
recorded in compliance with accounting and reporting standards and does not constitute Montana’s total acceptance 
of the liability or responsibility on these matters. 

NOTE 12. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

A. Balances Due From/To Other Funds 

Balances due from/to other funds arise when there is a time lag between the dates that reimbursable expenditures 
and interfund services provided/used are recorded in the accounting system, and the dates on which payments are 
made. Balances also arise when there is a time lag between the dates that transfers between funds are recorded, and 
the dates on which payments are made. Balances due from/to other funds also include the current portion of balances 
related to amounts loaned by the Economic Development Bonds Fund to other funds, under the Board of 
Investments INTERCAP loan program. Balances due from/to other funds are expected to be repaid within one year 
from the date of the financial statements. 

Balances due from/to other funds at June 30, 2012, consisted of the following (in thousands): 

                                         Due to Other Funds
Coal 

Severance 
Tax

Permanent 

Federal 
Special 

Revenue 
General 

Fund 

Internal 
Service
Funds  

Nonmajor 
Enterprise 
Funds (3) 

     Due from Other Funds 
     Economic Development Bonds $          - $          -    $          - $   972  $          -
     General Fund 3,850 110 -      46 12,785
     Internal Service Funds 42 4 12 5 -
     Nonmajor Enterprise Funds - 1 - - -
     Nonmajor Governmental Funds - - 1,099 - -
     State Special Revenue - 315 120 13 58
 Total $3,892 $430 $1,231 $1,036 $12,843
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NOTE 14. MAJOR PURPOSE PRESENTATION   

Fund Balances Classifications and Special Revenue by Purpose – The Governmental Accounting Standards Board, in Statement No. 54, requires presentation 
of governmental fund balances and special revenue fund revenues by specific purpose. In the basic financial statements, the fund balance classifications are 
presented in the aggregate. The tables presented below further display the fund balances by major purpose for the year ending June 30, 2012. 

State Special Revenue By Source (in thousands) 

General
Government  Public Safety  Transportation  

Health and 
Human

Services  Education  
Natural

Resources  Total 
Licenses/permits $ 58,863 $ 29,004 $ 23,444 $ 1,425 $ 171 $ 58,840 $ 171,747 
Taxes  237,346  3,637  211,940  5  14  13,760  466,702 
Charges for services  30,420  16,121  4,882  35,053  906  17,165  104,547 
Investment earnings  379  15,568  173  317  1,066  23,235  40,738 
Securities lending income  22  174  14  19  10  306  545 
Sale of documents/ 

merchandise/property  1,256  2,253  153  85  205  1,456  5,408 
Rentals/leases/royalties  213  29  295  27  5  213  782 
Contributions/premiums  21,666 - -  - - -  21,666 
Grants/contracts/ donations  2,366  2,469  298  9,204  1,545  3,632  19,514 
Federal  10,736  56  -  426  - -  11,218 
Federal indirect recoveries  38  -  41,102  6 -  3,507  44,653 
Other revenues  717  1,039  922  (436)  -  157  2,399 
Transfers in  31,395  3,874  299  6,510  469  97,655  140,202 
Total state special revenue $ 395,417 $ 74,224 $ 283,522 $ 52,641 $ 4,391 $ 219,926 $ 1,030,121 

Federal Special Revenue By Source (in thousands)

General
Government  Public Safety  Transportation  

Health and 
Human

Services  Education  
Natural

Resources  Total 
Charges for services $ 697 $ - $ - $ 2,647 $ 35,031 $ 145 $ 38,520 
Investment earnings  241  14  - -  57  -  312 
Securities lending income  1 1 - - 6 -  8 
Sale of documents/merchandise/ 

property - - - - - 5  5 
Grants/contracts/donations  - - - - -  139  139 
Federal  142,894  10,998  495,142  1,132,327  185,029  92,586  2,058,976 
Federal indirect cost recoveries  91  - -  61,330  599  426  62,446 
Other revenues 7 6 -  154  2  10  179 
Transfers in - 3 -  243  -  36  282 
Total federal special revenue $ 143,931 $ 11,022 $ 495,142 $ 1,196,701 $ 220,724 $ 93,347 $ 2,160,867 
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G. Operating Leases 

Future rental payments under operating leases are as follows (in thousands): 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30 

Discretely Presented 
Component Units 

2013 $   4,574 
2014 3,704 
2015 3,570 
2016 2,835 
2017 2,751 
2018-2022 5,024 
2023-2027 1,239 

   Thereafter 3,221 

Total future rental payments $ 26,918 

H. Debt Service Requirements 

Debt service requirements of discretely presented component units at June 30, 2012, were as follows (in thousands): 

Housing Authority Montana State University University of Montana
Year Ended 

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 
2013 $  61,665 $    27,215 $    5,774 $    5,003 $    6,552 $    4,645 
2014 12,555 26,708 5,995 4,957 6,649 4,494
2015 13,295 26,214 6,295 4,701 6,897 4,227
2016 13,660 25,663 6,460 4,438 7,075 3,966
2017 15,340 25,058 6,785 4,176 7,330 3,727
2018-2022 89,150 113,866 38,075 15,982 41,710 13,658
2023-2027 119,005 89,517 23,725 8,446 33,735 4,754
2028-2032 128,980 58,363 14,180 3,951 8,915 1,043
2033-2037 121,980 28,211 10,025 891 960 38
2038-2042 50,495 5,440 - - - -
2043-2047 3,225 145 - - - -

 Total $629,350 $ 426,400 $ 117,314 $   52,545 $ 119,823 $   40,552 
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I. Summary of Changes in Long-term Liabilities Payable 

Long-term liability activity of discretely presented component units for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows 
(in thousands): 

Beginning 
Balance (3) Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Amounts
Due Within 
One Year 

Amounts
Due In More 

Than One 
Year 

Discretely presented component units 
Bonds/notes payable 
 Housing Authority $  784,358 $      58,434 $   208,257 $     634,535 $     61,665 $     572,870
 Montana State University (MSU)  109,028 15,337 5,556 118,809 5,774 113,035
 University of Montana (UM)  124,346 41,426 47,674 118,098 6,584 111,514
  Total bonds/notes payable (1) 1,017,732 115,197 261,487 871,442 74,023 797,419

Other liabilities 
 Lease/installment purch pay 409 80 220 269 136 133
 Compensated absences pay 54,136 24,606 23,720 55,022 26,481 28,541
 Arbitrage rebate tax payable 845 160 709 296 - 296
 Estimated insurance claims 939,424 114,004 104,314 949,114 122,496 826,618
 Due to federal government 32,590 147 67 32,670 - 32,670
 Derivative swap liability 3,880 2,616 - 6,496 - 6,496
     Reinsurance funds withheld 57,888 13,715 2,630 68,973 - 68,973
 OPEB implicit rate subsidy (2) 77,054 15,397 - 92,451 - 92,451
  Total other liabilities 1,166,226 170,725 131,660 1,205,291 149,113 1,056,178

$  2,183,958 $    285,922 $    393,147 $  2,076,733 223,136 1,853,597
Long-term liabilities of Montana University System 
component units (4) (10) 1,913
Total discretely presented component units 
 Long-term liabilities $    223,126 $  1,855,510

(1) When applicable, this amount includes deferred refunding costs, unamortized discounts, and unamortized premiums. 

(2) The OPEB plan allows retirees to participate, as a group, at a rate that does not cover all the related costs. This results in the 
reporting of an “implicit rate” subsidy in the related financial statements. While this liability is disclosed for financial purposes, it 
does not represent a legal liability of the State, or any of its component units.  OPEB is reported as a single line item on the
financial statements. 

(3)    Beginning balances are taken from component unit financial statements 

(4)   Interentity transaction eliminations between Montana University System component units for debt shown in the component unit 
information can cause negative balances in component unit information. 

J. Refunded and Early Retired Debt 

Universities
Defeased Debt Outstanding 
The University of Montana has defeased certain bond issues by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable 
trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the 
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the financial statements. At June 30, 2012, $122,094,145 of 
bonds outstanding were considered defeased for the University of Montana. 
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In November  2012, Montana State University issued intercap debt totaling $4.35 million to fund energy efficiency 
projects in its auxiliary buildings. 

NOTE 19. MATERIAL VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL PROVISIONS 

Constitutionality of Retirement Plan Funding 
The Montana Constitution, Article VIII, Section 15 states that public retirement systems shall be funded on an 
actuarially sound basis. Public pension plans are considered actuarially sound if the unfunded accrued actuarial 
liability amortization period is less than 30 years.  As of June 30, 2012, the Public Employees Retirement System-
Defined Benefit Retirement Plan (PERS-DBRP), Sheriffs Retirement System (SRS), Game Warden & Peace 
Officers Retirement System (GWPORS), Highway Patrol Officers’ Retirement System (HPORS) and Teachers 
Retirement System (TRS) were  not in compliance and do not amortize within 30 years.  Detailed information for the 
retirement plan can be found in Note 6. 
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NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE RSI-1. BUDGETARY REPORTING

A. State Budget Process

The Montana Legislature meets in the odd-numbered years to prepare annual budgets for the next biennium. The constitution 
requires that legislative appropriations not exceed available revenues. The Legislature uses revenue estimates in the budgetary 
process to establish appropriation levels. Expenditures may not legally exceed budget appropriations at the fund level. In 
addition, the State Constitution prohibits borrowing to cover deficits incurred because appropriations exceeded anticipated 
revenues. State law requires an appropriation for disbursements from the general, special revenue and capital projects funds,
except for those special revenue funds from non-state and non-federal sources restricted by law or by the terms of an agreement. 
The level of budgetary control is established by fund type, except capital project funds, which are at project level. Budgets may 
be established in other funds for administrative purposes.

Agency budget requests are submitted to the Governor, and the Legislative Fiscal Division receives a copy. The Office of 
Budget and Program Planning (OBPP) and the Governor analyze the requests, establish priorities, and develop the requests into 
the executive budget request submitted to the Legislature. Joint appropriations subcommittee hearings are held, and an omnibus
appropriation bill is reported in the House and subsequently sent to the Senate. The Legislature generally enacts one bill to 
establish the majority of appropriations for the next two fiscal years. OBPP establishes appropriations for each program by 
accounting entity (fund) within an agency. The Legislature enacts other appropriations, but only within the available revenue. 
Agencies must prepare and submit to the budget director operational plans showing the allocation of operating budgets by 
expenditure category (i.e., personal services, operating expenses, equipment, etc.). The budget director or other statutorily
designated approving authority may authorize changes among expenditure categories and transfers between program 
appropriations.

Appropriations may not be increased by amendment in the General Fund. However, a department, institution, or agency of the 
executive branch desiring authorization to make expenditures from the General Fund during the first fiscal year of the biennium 
from appropriations for the second fiscal year of the biennium may apply for authorization from the Governor through the 
budget director. In the second year of the biennium, during the legislative session, the Legislature may authorize supplemental 
appropriations. The Governor, or designee, may approve budget amendments for non-general fund monies not available for 
consideration by the Legislature and for emergencies. In the accompanying financial schedule, original and final budget amounts 
are reported. There were no expenditures in excess of total authorized appropriations in the State's budgeted funds for the fiscal 
year.

Appropriations may be continued into the next fiscal year when authorized by the Legislature or the Governor's office. After 
fiscal year-end, appropriations that are not continued are reverted. The reverted appropriations remain available for one fiscal 
year for expenditures that exceed the amount accrued or encumbered. Fund balances are not reserved for reverted 
appropriations. For fiscal year 2012, reverted governmental fund appropriations were as follows: General Fund - $22.5 million, 
State Special Revenue Fund - $91.5 million, and Federal Special Revenue Fund - $121.7 million. Agencies are allowed to carry 
forward 30% of their reverted operating appropriations into the next two fiscal years. This amount can be used for new 
expenditures at the request of the agency and upon approval of OBPP.

Appropriations for capital projects funds are not made on an annual basis, but are adopted on a project-length basis. Because 
these non-operating budgets primarily serve a management control purpose, and related appropriations are continuing in 
nature, no comparison between budgeted and actual amounts for funds budgeted on this basis is provided. 

B. Budget Basis

The Legislature's legal authorization ("appropriations") to incur obligations is enacted on a basis inconsistent with GAAP. The 
budget basis differs from GAAP for encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year-end; compensated absences, fixed assets and 
inventories purchased in proprietary funds; certain loans from governmental funds; and other miscellaneous nonbudgeted 
activity (e.g., bad-debt write-offs, etc.).
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PENSION PLAN INFORMATION

Pension Plan Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

(in thousands)

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability(AAL)
Entry Age

(b)

Unfunded
(UAAL)

(b-a)

Funded
Ratio
(a/b)

Annual
Covered
Payroll

(c)

UAAL as
Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
((b-a)/c)

Single Employer System

JRS
6/30/2010 61,277 42,513 (18,764) 144% 5,687 (330%)
6/30/2011 61,274 43,414 (17,860) 141% 5,645 (316%)
6/30/2012 63,195 46,190 (17,005) 137% 6,193 (275%)

HPORS

6/30/2010 97,204 151,177 53,973 64% 13,036 414%
6/30/2011 95,274 155,742 60,468 61% 12,472 485%
6/30/2012 96,655 167,824 71,169 58% 13,618 523%

Multiple Employer Systems

PERS-DBRP
6/30/2010 3,889,890 5,241,819 1,351,929 74% 1,083,780 125%
6/30/2011 3,800,479 5,410,144 1,609,665 70% 1,071,376 150%
6/30/2012 3,816,920 5,661,281 1,844,361 67% 1,081,288 171%

SRS
6/30/2010 200,739 246,734 45,995 81% 54,681 84%
6/30/2011 203,689 266,506 62,817 76% 57,041 110%
6/30/2012 211,535 284,559 73,024 74% 59,583 123%

GWPORS
6/30/2010 85,151 113,855 28,704 75% 39,436 73%
6/30/2011 90,437 119,881 29,444 75% 38,306 77%
6/30/2012 97,691 128,927 31,236 76% 38,317 82%

MPORS
6/30/2010 217,545 380,393 162,847 57% 37,220 438%
6/30/2011 221,669 401,381 179,712 55% 39,470 455%
6/30/2012 234,025 427,257 193,232 55% 41,745 463%

FURS
6/30/2010 213,755 335,463 121,708 64% 33,339 365%
6/30/2011 219,959 355,188 135,229 62% 34,852 388%
6/30/2012 233,121 377,211 144,090 62% 36,177 398%

TRS
7/1/2010 2,956,600 4,518,200 1,561,600 65% 747,000 209%
7/1/2011 2,866,500           4,658,600 1,792,100 62% 746,700 240%
7/1/2012 2,852,000 4,814,700 1,962,700 59% 735,600 267%

Nonemployer Contributor

VFCA
6/30/2010 26,575 34,512 7,936 77% N/A N/A
6/30/2011 26,183 35,195 9,012 74% N/A N/A
6/30/2012 26,531 36,146 9,615 73% N/A N/A

A-137



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN INFORMATION (OPEB)

The State of Montana and the Montana University System (MUS) implemented Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statements 43 and 45 as of June 30, 2008 (see Notes 2 and 7).

The State of Montana and MUS OPEB plans allow retirees to participate, as a group, at a rate that does not cover all of 
the related costs. This results in the reporting of an “implied rate” subsidy in the related financial statements and 
footnotes. While this liability is disclosed for financial statement purposes, it does not represent a legal liability of the
State or any of its component units.

In accordance with GASB Statement 45, the following information is presented to reflect the funding progress of the 
Other Postemployment Benefits Plans.

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan Information (1)
Schedule of Funding Progress

(in thousands)

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability(AAL)
Entry Age

(b)

Unfunded
(UAAL)

(b-a)

Funded
Ratio
(a/b)

Annual
Covered
Payroll

(c)

UAAL as
Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
((b-a)/c)

State Agent Multiple Employer Plan

1/1/2007 $ - $449,321 $449,321 0.00% $519,969 86.41%

1/1/2009 $ - $357,664 $357,664 0.00% $526,794 67.89%

1/1/2011 $ - $337,274 $337,274 0.00% $521,881 64.63%

MUS Agent Multiple Employer Plan

7/1/2007 $ - $182,597 $182,597 0.00% $349,259 52.28%

7/1/2009 $ - $183,230 $183,230 0.00% $386,751 47.40%

7/1/2011 $ - $109,831 $109,831 0.00% $371,802 29.54%

(1) The State and the MUS implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Information for prior years is not available.  
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AMOUNT

State of Montana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

PEACE CORPS

08.999 10,761Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

$10,761TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

10.025 1,101,210Plant and Animal Disease, Pest Control, and Animal Care

10.069 4,774Conservation Reserve Program

10.072 14,991Wetlands Reserve Program

10.093 10,114Voluntary Public Access and Habitat Incentive Program

10.156 24,564Federal-State Marketing Improvement Program

10.162 31,048Inspection Grading and Standardization

10.163 490,798Market Protection and Promotion

10.169 230,623Specialty Crop Block Grant Program

10.217 40,835Higher Education Challenge Grants

10.220 1,703Higher Education Multicultural Scholars Program

10.446 38,157Rural Community Development Initiative:  From Ravalli County Econ Dev. Authority

10.475 611,564Cooperative Agreements with States for Intrastate Meat and Poultry Inspection

10.500 2,922,028Cooperative Extension Service

10.500 19,242Cooperative Extension Service:  From Colorado State

10.500 31,030Cooperative Extension Service:  From Kansas State Univ.

10.500 32,374Cooperative Extension Service:  From Fort Belkap Comm. Council

10.550 3,335,555Food Donation

10.557 15,514,605Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, & Children

10.558 10,788,634Child and Adult Care Food Program

10.560 1,342,348State Administrative Expenses for Child Nutrition

10.565 2,543,878Commodity Supplemental Food Program

10.567 3,412,878Food Distribution Program on Indian Reservations

10.572 56,801WIC Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (FMNP)

10.574 397,651Team Nutrition Grants

10.576 99,525Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program

10.578 787WIC Grants To States

10.578 196,723ARRA WIC Grants to States

10.579 117,860Child Nutrition Discretionary Grants Limited Availability

10.582 1,586,979Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program
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State of Montana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

10.601 24,260Market Access Program:  From U.S. Livestock Genetics Export

10.601 9,244Market Access Program:  From West US Ag Trade Assn.

10.652 302,329Forestry Research

10.664 5,029,131Cooperative Forestry Assistance

10.672 44,300Rural Development, Forestry, and Communities

10.676 5,931,249Forest Legacy Program

10.678 8,485Forest Stewardship Program

10.680 15,383Forest Health Protection

10.683 9,700National Fish and Wildlife Foundation:  From Sanders County

10.684 441,473International Forestry Programs

10.687 110,618ARRA  Capital Improvement Maintenance

10.688 1,004,340ARRA Wildlife Fire Management

10.901 7,832Resource Conservation and Development

10.902 104,387Soil and Water Conservation

10.912 2,001,176Environmental Quality Incentives Program

10.923 18,518ARRA Emergency Watershed Protection Program

10.999 18,397Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

$60,080,101TOTAL

CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER

10.553 6,785,588School Breakfast Program

10.555 24,374,944National School Lunch Program

10.556 15,493Special Milk Program for Children

10.559 1,289,302Summer Food Service Program for Children

$32,465,327TOTAL

EMERGENCY FOOD ASSISTANCE CLUSTER

10.568 161,571Emergency Food Assistance Program (Administrative Costs)

10.569 1,062,962Emergency Food Assistance Program (Food Commodities)

$1,224,533TOTAL

SCHOOLS AND ROADS CLUSTER

10.665 20,489,381Schools and Roads: Grants to States

$20,489,381TOTAL

SNAP CLUSTER

10.551 190,942,035Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)
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State of Montana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

10.551 3,566,865ARRA Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)

10.561 12,656,887State Administrative Matching Grants for SNAP Program

$207,165,787TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

11.400 6,392Geodetic Surveys and Services

11.550 306,334Public Telecommunication Facilities-Planning and Construction

11.550 223,459Public Telecommunication Facilities-Planning and Construction:  From PBS

11.553 269NYC 9/11 Digital Television Program:  From PBS

11.555 (165,828)Public Safety Interoperable Communications Grant Program

11.557 751,278ARRA  Broadband Technology Opportunities Program (BTOP)

11.568 38,690ARRA State Broadband Data and Development

11.609 1,948Measurement and Engineering Research and Standards

$1,162,542TOTAL

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER

11.307 84,014Economic Adjustment Assistance

11.307 63,298ARRA Economic Adjustment Assistance

$147,312TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

12.100 2,306Aquatic Plant Control

12.112 16,464Payments to States in Lieu of Real Estate Taxes

12.217 70,223Electronic Absentee Systems for Elections

12.400 698,859Military Construction National Guard

12.401 21,891,997National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projects

12.404 3,371,922National Guard Civilian Youth Opportunities

12.599 847,286Congressionally Directed Assistance

12.900 99,992Language Grant Program

12.900 1,023,929Language Grant Program:  From Inst. International Ed., Inc

12.999 305,071Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

12.999 12,347Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants:  From Washington State Univ.

12.999 14,856Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants:  From Consensus Buildng Institute

$28,355,252TOTAL
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State of Montana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT

14.103 201,756Interest Reduction Payments Rental and Cooperative Housing for Lower Income
Families

14.169 117,120Housing Counseling Assistance Program

14.231 401,211Emergency Shelter Grants Program

14.235 66,306Supportive Housing Program

14.238 186,784Shelter Plus Care

14.239 4,518,994Home Investment Partnerships Program

14.241 967,796Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS

14.257 391,601ARRA Homeless Prevention & Rapid Re-Housing Program

14.258 365,689ARRA Tax Credit Assistance Program (Recovery Act Funded)

14.323 110,937Emergency Homeowners' Loan Program

$7,328,194TOTAL

CDBG - STATE ADMIN. CDBG CLUSTER

14.228 7,565,106Community Development Block Grant/States Program

14.255 20,804ARRA CDBG

$7,585,910TOTAL

HOUSING VOUCHER CLUSTER

14.871 19,407,990Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

$19,407,990TOTAL

SECTION 8 PROJECT-BASED CLUSTER

14.195 19,678,020Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program Special Allocations

14.856 1,872,516Lower Income Housing Assistance Program-Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation

$21,550,536TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

15.114 41,236Indian Education:   Higher Education Grant Program

15.224 52,603Cultural Resource Management

15.225 41,029Recreation Resource Management

15.231 301,447Fish, Wildlife and Plant Conservation Resource Management

15.231 35,032Fish, Wildlife and Plant Conservation Resource Management:  From Pheasants
Forever

15.233 90,742ARRA - Forests and Woodlands Resource Management
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15.234 91,317Secure Rural Schools and Community Self-Determination

15.236 856,680Environmental Quality and Protection Resource Management

15.236 1,131,723ARRA  Environmental Quality and Protection Resource Management

15.238 12,637Challenge Cost Share

15.239 14,510Management Initiatives

15.242 264,534National Fire Plan - Rural Fire Assistance

15.250 1,552,091Regulation Surface Coal Mining and Surface Effects of Underground Coal Mining

15.252 6,948,355Abandoned Mine Land Reclamation (AMLR) Program

15.427 287,738Federal Oil and Gas Royalty Management

15.517 88,701Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act

15.517 6,598ARRA Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act

15.608 213,590Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance

15.612 161,473Endangered Species Section 6

15.615 760,289Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation Fund

15.623 193,800North American Wetlands Conservation Fund

15.631 203National Fire Plan - Rural Fire Assistance

15.632 74,400Conservation Grants Private Stewardship for Imperiled Species

15.634 1,055,363State Wildlife Grants

15.634 10,357State Wildlife Grants:  From Washington F&W

15.637 8,109Migratory Bird Joint Ventures

15.655 (1,137)Migratory Bird Monitoring, Assessment and Conservation

15.808 17,291U.S. Geological Survey-Research and Data Acquisition

15.812 5,095Cooperative Research Units Program

15.814 3,122National Geological and Geophysical Data Preservation Program

15.904 803,439Historic Preservation Fund Grants-in-Aid

15.912 22,000National Historic Landmark

15.916 59,000Outdoor Recreation: Acquisition, Development and Planning

15.929 131,221Save America's Treasures

15.943 14,583Challenge Cost Share

15.945 83,911Cooperative Research and Training Programs - NPS

15.999 75,792Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

$15,508,874TOTAL

FISH AND WILDLIFE CLUSTER

15.605 9,625,239Sport Fish Restoration
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15.611 6,944,523Wildlife Restoration

$16,569,762TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

16.001 14,147Law Enforcement Assistance: Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs-Laboratory Analysis

16.001 33,305Law Enforcement Assistance: Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs-Laboratory Analysis:
From City of Billings

16.012 7,986Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms-Training Assistance

16.017 183,586Sexual Assault Services Formula Program

16.200 214,544Community Relations Service

16.203 79,080Comprehensive Approaches to Sex Offender Management Discretionary Grant

16.304 31,255Law Enforcement Assistance-National Crime Information Center

16.523 385,496Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grants

16.540 621,619Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention: Allocation to States

16.541 171,131Part E - Developing, Testing and Demonstrating Promising New Programs

16.548 52,812Title V Delinquency Prevention

16.550 95,524State Justice Statistics Program For Statistical Analysis Centers

16.554 84,752National Criminal History Improvement Program (NCHIP)

16.560 71,021National Institute of Justice Research, Evaluation, and Development Project Grants

16.575 1,877,075Crime Victim Assistance

16.576 221,425Crime Victim Compensation

16.580 74,529Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance Discretionary
Grants Prog

16.585 209,788Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program

16.588 939,704Violence Against Women Formula Grants

16.588 154,133ARRA Violence Against Women Formula Grants

16.593 94,951Residential Substance Abuse Treatment for State Prisoners

16.606 38,138State Criminal Alien Assistance Program

16.607 22,175Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program

16.609 75,200Community Prosecution and Project Safe Neighborhoods

16.710 126,717Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants

16.726 60,663Juvenile Mentoring Program:  From National 4H Council

16.727 362,596Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws Program

16.731 132,153Tribal Youth Program

16.741 291,371Forensic DNA Backlog Reduction Program
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16.742 190,474Paul Coverdell Forensic Sciences Improvement Grant Program

16.753 122,954Congressionally Recommended Awards

16.754 115,857Harold Rogers Prescription Drug Monitoring Program

16.810 707,201ARRA  Assistance to Rural Law Enforcement to Combat Crime and Drugs
Competitive Grant Prg

16.812 240,794Second Chance Act Prisoner Reentry Initiative

16.816 102,357John R. Justice Prosecutors and Defenders Incentive Act

16.922 40,915Equitable Sharing Program

16.999 17,392Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants:  From Salish Kootenai College

$8,264,820TOTAL

JAG PROGRAM CLUSTER

16.738 1,077,998Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

16.803 260,168ARRA Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)

$1,338,166TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

17.002 721,131Labor Force Statistics

17.005 79,126Compensation and Working Conditions Data

17.225 221,565,414Unemployment Insurance

17.235 535,567Senior Community Service Employment Program

17.245 2,929,414Trade Adjustment Assistance-Workers

17.260 820,679WIA Dislocated Workers

17.260 539,007ARRA WIA Dislocated Workers

17.261 72,144Employment and Training Administration Pilots, Demonstrations, and Research
Projects

17.269 637,674Community Based Job Training Grants

17.269 2,035Community Based Job Training Grants:  From Mid-South Community College

17.271 80,106Work Opportunity Tax Credit Program (WOTC) & Welfare-to-Work Tax Credit
(WtWTC)

17.273 119,624Temporary Labor Certification for Foreign Workers

17.274 514,106Youthbuild

17.274 140,597Youthbuild:  From Career Training Institute

17.275 219,590ARRA Comp Grants for Worker Training and Placement in High Growth and
Emerging Ind. Sec.

17.275 1,805,672ARRA Comp Grants for Worker Training and Placement in High Growth and
Emerging Ind. Sec.:  From Montana - EJATC
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17.504 436,553Consultation Agreements

17.600 128,399Mine Health and Safety Grants

17.807 18,000Transition Assistance Program

$231,364,838TOTAL

EMPLOYMENT SERVICES CLUSTER

17.207 5,991,251Employment Service

17.207 2,799Employment Service:  From North Carolina

17.801 459,864Disabled Veterans Outreach Program (DVOP)

17.804 174,443Local Veterans' Employment Representative Program

$6,628,357TOTAL

WIA CLUSTER

17.258 2,415,890WIA Adult Program

17.259 2,397,148WIA Youth Activities

17.278 2,377,591WIA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants

$7,190,629TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

19.009 239,010Academic Exchange Programs - Undergraduate Programs

19.014 297,579One-Time International Exchange Grant Program

19.408 182,213Educational Exchange - Teachers from Secondary and Postsecondary Levels: 
From Intern. Research

19.415 121,803Professional and Cultural Exchange Programs - Citizen Exchanges

19.999 20,648Miscellaneous Grants

$861,253TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

20.106 192,852Airport Improvement Program

20.218 1,429,766National Motor Carrier Safety

20.231 129,615Performance and Registration Information Systems Management

20.233 756,310Border Enforcement Grants

20.237 459,122Commercial Vehicle Information Systems and Networks

20.238 130,589Commercial Drivers License Information System (CDLIS) Modernization Grant

20.240 2,388Fuel Tax Evasion-Intergovernmental Enforcement Effort

20.505 365,290Federal Transit Technical Studies Grant

20.509 7,984,854Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized Areas
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20.509 1,234,696ARRA Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized Areas

20.515 37,100State Planning and Research

20.605 329,780Saftety Incentives to Prevent Operation of Motor Vehicles by Intoxicated Persons

20.608 6,006,543Minimum Penalties for Repeat Offenders for Driving While Intoxicated

20.614 77,569National Highway Transportation Safety Administration (NHTSA) Discretionary
Safety Grants

20.700 65,588Pipeline Safety

20.703 125,684Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and Planning Grants

20.999 26,416Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

$19,354,162TOTAL

FEDERAL TRANSIT CLUSTER

20.500 160,017Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants

$160,017TOTAL

HIGHWAY PLAN. AND CONST. CLUSTER

20.205 468,244,043Highway Planning and Construction

20.205 4,242,443ARRA Highway Planning and Construction

20.219 1,152,913Recreational Trails Program

$473,639,399TOTAL

HIGHWAY SAFETY CLUSTER

20.600 1,626,278State and Community Highway Safety

20.601 1,508,101Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving Prevention Incentive Grants

20.602 178,312Occupant Protection

20.610 599,196State Traffic Safety Information System Improvement Grants

20.611 15,913Incentive Grant Program to Prohibit Racial Profiling

20.612 179,121Incentive Grant Program to Increase Motorcyclist Safety

$4,106,921TOTAL

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAM CLUSTER

20.513 84,494Capital Assistance Program for Elderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities

$84,494TOTAL

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

20.516 486,495Job Access Reverse Commute

$486,495TOTAL
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DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

21.999 172,888Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

$172,888TOTAL

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION

30.001 56,460Employment Discrimination Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

$56,460TOTAL

GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

39.003 74,017Donation of Federal Surplus Personal Property

39.011 501,257Election Reform Payments

$575,274TOTAL

LIBRARY OF CONGRESS

42.999 15,515Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants:  From National Film Preservation Found.

$15,515TOTAL

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION

43.001 29,787Aerospace Education Services Program

43.001 2,257Aerospace Education Services Program:  From John Hopkins Univ.

$32,044TOTAL

NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES

45.024 35,000Promotion of the Arts-Grants to Organizations and Individuals

45.025 848,290Promotion of the Arts-Partnership Agreements

45.129 257,719Promotion of the Humanities-Federal/State Partnership

45.129 37,431Promotion of the Humanities-Federal/State Partnership:  From Hummanties
Montana

45.163 9,523Promotion of the Humanities-Seminars and Institutes

45.310 1,114,430State Library Program

45.312 9,434Institute of Museum and Library Services - National Leadership Grants

45.313 530,500Laura Bush 21st Century Librarian Program

$2,842,327TOTAL
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NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION

47.041 32,686Engineering Grants:  From Univesity of  Alaska

47.074 56,077Biological Sciences

47.075 47,311Social, Behavioral, and Economic Sciences

47.076 948,793Education and Human Resources

47.076 260,226Education and Human Resources:  From Salish Kootenai College

47.076 15,500Education and Human Resources:  From National Evolutionary Synthesis Ctr

$1,360,593TOTAL

SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

59.000 167,362Small Business Administration-Technical Assistance Grant

59.037 776,839Small Business Development Center

59.058 48,591Federal and State Technology Partnership Program

59.061 89,213State Trade and Export Promotion Pilot Grant Program

$1,082,005TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

64.014 141,244Veterans State Domiciliary Care

64.015 5,544,715Veterans State Nursing Home Care

64.124 136,708All-Volunteer Force Educational Assistance

$5,822,667TOTAL

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

66.040 652,111State Clean Diesel Grant Program

66.202 89,309Congressionally Mandated Projects

66.433 107,471State Underground Water Source Protection

66.454 99,984Water Quality Management Planning

66.458 2,267,853Capitalization Grants For State Revolving Funds

66.460 2,098,939Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants

66.461 139,398Regional Wetland Program Development Grants

66.468 7,919,521Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

66.468 1,008,892ARRA Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
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66.471 106,206State Grants to Reimburse Operators of Small Water Sys for Training Certification
Costs

66.474 52,908Water Protection Grants to the States

66.511 1,712Office of Research and Development Consolidated Research/Training/Fellowships: 
From Assn of Pesticide Control Officials

66.514 71,105Science To Achieve Results (STAR) Fellowship Program

66.605 5,992,912Performance Partnership Grants

66.608 285,318One Stop Reporting

66.708 15,313Pollution Prevention Grants Program

66.716 1,896Surveys, Studies, Investigations, Training Demonstrations and Educational
Outreach:  From Ntl Assn. of State Depts of Agriculture

66.802 3,235,560Superfund State, Political Subdivision, and Indian Tribe Site - Specific Coop.

66.804 450,701State Underground Storage Tanks Program

66.805 896,476Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Program

66.805 32,437ARRA Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Program

66.809 192,739Superfund State and Indian Tribe Core Program Cooperative Agreements

66.817 674,139State and Tribal Response Program Grants

66.951 11,228Environmental Education Grants

66.999 135,578Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

$26,539,706TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

81.041 256,769State Energy Program

81.041 9,199,214ARRA State Energy Program

81.041 44,566State Energy Program:  From Washington State University

81.042 1,828,028Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons

81.042 5,447,127ARRA Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons

81.042 1,640Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons:  From University of Nebraska

81.086 2,640,898Conservation Research and Development

81.086 56,039Conservation Research and Development:  From Kootenai Tribe

81.087 1,218,406Renewable Energy Research and Development

81.112 34,187Stewardship Science Grant Program

81.117 17,756Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Information Dissemination, Outreach,
Training

81.119 93,015State Energy Program Special Projects

81.127 9,718ARRA Energy Efficient Appliance Rebate Program (EEARP)
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81.128 3,934,679ARRA Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG)

81.999 10,834Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

81.999 38,923ARRA Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants:  From Pacific Northwest National
Laboratory

$24,831,799TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

84.002 1,286,283Adult Education - State Grant Program

84.011 1,031,599Migrant Education - Basic State Grant Program

84.013 124,924Title I Program for Neglected and Delinquent Children

84.017 10,374International Research and Studies

84.048 5,205,773Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States

84.051 242,851National Vocational Education Research

84.116 94,677Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education

84.116 26,689Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education:  From New Mexico State
University

84.128 24,769Rehabilitation Services-Service Projects

84.129 11,916Rehabilitation Long-Term Training

84.133 736,797National Institute on Disability and Rehabilitation Research

84.133 6,684National Institute on Disability and Rehabilitation Research:  From Meeting The
Challenge

84.144 75,987Migrant Education - Coordination Program(B)

84.184 67,497Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities - National Programs

84.185 8,116Byrd Honors Scholarships

84.186 69,220Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities - State Grants

84.187 341,548Supported Employment Services for Individuals with Severe Disabilities

84.213 84,421Even Start - State Educational Agencies

84.224 439,444State Grants for Assistive Technology

84.243 235,760Tech-Prep Education

84.265 20,615Rehabiliation Training-State Vocational Rehabilitation Unit In-Service

84.287 5,799,211Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers

84.293 (3,555)Foreign Language Assistance:  From Missoula County Public Schools

84.323 1,256,722Special Education - State Program Improvement Grants for Children with Disabilities

84.325 58,660Special Education - Personnel Preparation to Improve Services and Results for
Children

84.326 126,889Special Education - Technical Assistance and Dissemination to Improve Services an
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84.326 179,931Special Education - Technical Assistance and Dissemination to Improve Services
and Results:  From CA State University Northridge

84.330 36,760Advanced Placement Program

84.334 3,201,469Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs (GEAR-UP)

84.335 45,233Child Care Access Means Parents in School

84.358 258,048Rural Education

84.359 1,332,923Early Reading First

84.365 755,170English Language Acquisition Grants

84.366 879,446Mathematics and Science Partnerships

84.367 13,480,417Improving Teacher Quality State Grants

84.368 855Grants for Enhanced Assessment Instruments

84.369 3,213,812Grants for State Assessments and Related Activities

84.371 3,444,349Striving Readers

84.378 1,643,973College Access Challenge Grant Program

84.410 452,404Education Jobs Fund

84.998 4,006American Printing House for the Blind

84.999 214,749Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

84.999 35,260Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants:  From Univ of CA - Nat. Writing Proj.

84.999 30,184Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants:  From WestEd

$46,592,860TOTAL

EARLY INTERVENTION SERVICES (IDEA) CLUSTER

84.181 1,387,030Special Education-Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities

84.393 1,428,220ARRA Special Education - Grants for Infants and Families

$2,815,250TOTAL

EDUC. OF HOMELESS CHILDREN AND YOUTH CLUSTER

84.196 197,524Education for Homeless Children and Youth

$197,524TOTAL

EDUCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY STATE GRANTS CLUSTER

84.318 396,502Education Technology State Grants

84.386 823,864ARRA Education Technology State Grants

84.386 37,065Education Technology State Grants:  From Bridger School

84.386 56,259ARRA Education Technology State Grants:  From Bridger School

$1,313,690TOTAL
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INDEP. LIVING SERV. FOR OLDER INDIV. WHO ARE BLIND CLUSTER

84.177 267,233Rehabilitation Services-Independent Living Services for Older Individuals/Blind

$267,233TOTAL

INDEPENDENT LIVING STATE GRANTS CLUSTER

84.169 292,071Independent Living-State Grants

84.398 141,566ARRA Independent Living State Grants

$433,637TOTAL

SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT GRANTS CLUSTER

84.377 1,185,354School Improvement Grants

84.388 3,010,118ARRA School Improvement Grants, Recovery Act

$4,195,472TOTAL

SPECIAL EDUCATION CLUSTER

84.027 39,291,452Special Education - Grants to States

84.027 18,682Special Education - Grants to States:  From VA Commonwealth Univ.

84.173 1,195,409Special Education - Preschool Grants

84.391 3,242,589ARRA Special Education Grants to States

84.392 111,409ARRA Special Education - Preschool Grants, Recovery Act

$43,859,541TOTAL

STATEWIDE DATA SYSTEMS CLUSTER

84.372 1,456,063Statewide Data Systems

$1,456,063TOTAL

STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CLUSTER

84.007 1,286,484Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants

84.032 1,075,516Federal Family Education Loans

84.033 1,980,011Federal Work - Study Program

84.038 57,978Federal Perkins Loan Program - Federal Capital Contributions

84.063 65,123,551Federal Pell Grant Program

84.268 217,356,315Federal Direct Student Loans

84.375 375Academic Competitiveness Grants

84.379 30,500Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education Grants

93.342 499Health Professions Student Loans, Including Primary Care Loans

93.407 77ARRA  Scholarships for Disadvantaged Students

93.925 427,958Scholarships for Health Professions Students from Disadvantaged Backgrounds
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$287,339,264TOTAL

TEACHER QUALITY PARTNERSHIP GRANTS CLUSTER

84.336 217,889Teacher Quality Enhancement Grants

$217,889TOTAL

TITLE 1, PART A CLUSTER

84.010 46,579,120Title I Grants To Local Education Agencies

84.389 3,849,755ARRA Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act

$50,428,875TOTAL

TRIO CLUSTER

84.042 1,647,378TRIO-Student Support Services

84.044 948,248TRIO-Talent Search

84.047 2,041,714TRIO-Upward Bound

84.066 607,193TRIO-Educational Opportunity Centers

84.217 210,182McNair Post - Baccalaureate Achievement

$5,454,715TOTAL

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION CLUSTER

84.126 13,586,541Rehabilitation Services-Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States

84.390 371,244ARRA - Rehabilitation Services-Vocational Rehabilitation

$13,957,785TOTAL

NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND RECORDS ADMINISTRATION

89.003 81,881National Historical Publications and Records Grants

$81,881TOTAL

ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION

90.401 197,595Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments

$197,595TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

93.041 13,027Special Programs for the Aging-Title VII, Chapter 3-Programs for Prevention

93.042 90,580Special Programs for the Aging-Title VII, Chapter 2-LongTerm Care Ombudsman
Services

93.043 104,888Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part D - DiseasePrevention/Health
Promotion Serv

93.048 270,910Special Programs for the Aging - Title IV and Title II Discretionary Projects

A-154



AMOUNT

State of Montana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

93.052 734,334Nation Family Caregiver Support Program

93.068 15,274Chronic Diseases: Research, Control, and Prevention:  From Nat. Assoc. of Chronic
Disease Dir.

93.069 4,823,216Public Health Emergency Preparedness

93.070 623,251Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response

93.072 58,144Lifespan Respite Care Program

93.090 3,021ARRA Guardianship Assistance

93.090 767,134Guardian Assistance

93.092 330,600Affordable Care Act (ACA) Personal Responsibility Education Program

93.110 225,197Maternal and Child Health Federal Consolidated Programs

93.110 8,174Maternal and Child Health Federal Consolidated Programs:  From Utah State
University

93.113 54,741Biological Response to Environmental Health Hazards

93.116 183,778Project Grant and Cooperative for Tuberculosis Control Program

93.127 128,225Emergency Medical Services for Children

93.130 130,133Primary Care Services-Resource Coordination and Development

93.150 288,305Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH)

93.157 360,286Centers of Excellence

93.165 71,453Grants to States for Loan Repayment Program

93.184 504,900Disabilities Prevention

93.184 1,510Disabilities Prevention:  From University of Illinois

93.210 32,182Tribal Self-Governance Program: IHS Compacts/Funding Agreements:  From Salish
Kootenai College

93.217 2,404,568Family Planning Services

93.236 102,588Grants for Dental Public Health Residency Training

93.241 993,384State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

93.243 914,897Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services-Projects of Regional and National
Significance

93.249 (1,535)Public Health Training Centers Grant Program:  From University of Washington

93.251 277,744Universal Newborn Hearing Screening

93.259 1,053Rural Access to Emergency Devices Grant

93.262 104,713Occupational Safety and Health Program

93.262 1,541Occupational Safety and Health Program:  From Colorado State University

93.283 8,290,690Centers for Disease Control and Prevention-Investigations and Technical
Assistance
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93.283 1,593Centers for Disease Control and Prevention-Investigations and Technical
Assistance:  From Assoc. Univ. Centers Disb.

93.307 9,401,705Minority Health and Health Disparities Research

93.308 177,624Extramural Loan Repayment for Indiv from Disadvant. Backgrounds Cond Clinical
Research

93.358 31,156Advanced Education Nursing Traineeships

93.389 257,898National Center for Research Resources

93.411 381ARRA - Equipment to Enhance Training for Health Professionals

93.414 119,734ARRA - State Primary Care Offices

93.448 101,832Food Safety and Security Monitoring Project

93.449 23,094Ruminant Feed Ban Support Project

93.500 771,470Pregnancy Assistance Fund Program

93.505 2,491,677Affordable Care Act (ACA) Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting
Program

93.507 198,612Strengthening Public Health Infrastructure for Improved Health Outcomes

93.511 365,330Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants to States for Health Insurance Premium Review

93.518 28,797Affordable Care Act - Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers

93.519 85,783Affordable Care Act (ACA) - Consumer Assistance Program Grants

93.520 54,256Centers for Disease Control and Prevention -Affordable Care Act (ACA)

93.521 549,931The Affordable Care Act: Building Epidemiology, Lab, and Health Info Systems
Capacity

93.525 411,804State Planning and Establishment Grants for the Affordable Care Act (ACA)'s
Exchanges

93.531 170,375PPHF 2012: Community Transfromation Grants and National Dissemination

93.536 83,163The Affordable Care Act Medicaid Incentives for Prevention of Chronic Disease

93.544 164,585The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 -Coordinated Chronic
Disease Prev.

93.556 1,081,944Promoting Safe and Stable Families

93.563 10,711,265Child Support Enforcement

93.566 7,122Refugee and Entrant Assistance-State Administered Programs

93.568 23,237,911Low Income Home Energy Assistance

93.586 275,147State Court Improvement Program

93.590 171,072Community-Based Family Resource and Support Grants

93.597 101,786Grants to States for Access and Visitation Programs

93.599 169,897Chafee Education and Training Vouchers Program (ETV)

93.603 (363)Adoption Incentive Payments
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93.617 53,266Voting Access for Individuals with Disabilities - Grants to States

93.630 275,672Developmental Disabilities Basic Support and Advocacy Grants

93.632 522,061University Centers for Excellence in Developmental Disabilities Education, Res, and
Ser.

93.643 93,925Children's Justice Grants to States

93.645 702,855Child Welfare Service-State Grant

93.648 119,107Child Welfare Serv. Training:  From Research Fndn. at  SUNY

93.658 11,115,452Foster Care Title IV-E

93.658 214,230ARRA Foster Care Title IV-E

93.659 7,715,572Adoption Assistance

93.659 223,937ARRA Adoption Assistance

93.667 6,921,651Social Services Block Grant

93.669 173,882Child Abuse and Neglect State Grants

93.671 867,785Family Violence Prevention and Services/Grants for Battered Women's Shelters

93.674 497,859Chafee Foster Care Independence Program

93.701 51,164ARRA Trans-NIH Recovery Act Researcg Support

93.713 1,457ARRA Child Care and Development Block Grant

93.717 95,473ARRA  Preventing Healthcare-Associated Infections

93.721 273,851ARRA  Health Information Technology Professionals in Health Care:  From Bellevue
Community College

93.723 307,400ARRA  Emergency Contingency Fund for Temporary Assistance

93.729 222,528ARRA  Health Information Technology and Public Health

93.767 53,396,200State Children's Insurance Program

93.768 400,751Medicaid Infrastr,  Grants To Support the Competitive Employ of People with
Disabilities

93.789 1,247,330Alternatives to Psychiatric Residential Treatment Facilities for Children

93.791 23,226Money Follows the Person Rebalancing Demonstration

93.888 67,743Specially Selected Health Projects

93.889 1,637,467National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program

93.912 15,151Rural Outreach-Rural Network Developmental Program:  From ST Lukes
Community Hospital

93.912 1,627Rural Outreach-Rural Network Developmental Program:  From Madison Valley
Medical Center

93.913 174,293Grants to States for Operation of Offices of Rural Health

93.917 1,074,678HIV Care Formula Grants

93.938 281,451Cooperative Agreements to Support School Health Programs

93.940 1,421,057HIV Prevention Activities-Health Department Based
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93.944 85,142HIV/Acquired Immunodeficiency Virus Syndrome (AIDS) Surveillance

93.958 1,229,161Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services

93.959 5,921,561Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

93.969 407,771Geriatric Education Centers

93.970 42,236Health Professions Recruitment Program for Indians

93.977 362,671Preventive Health Services-Sexually Transmitted Diseases Control Grants

93.991 347,281Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

93.994 2,479,524Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States

93.999 53,219Miscellaneous Non-Major Grants

$175,278,154TOTAL

AGING CLUSTER

93.044 1,745,685Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part B-Supportive Services and Senior
Centers

93.045 3,202,138Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part C-Nutrition Services

93.053 1,238,745Nutrition Services Incentive Program

$6,186,568TOTAL

CCDF CLUSTER

93.575 15,806,918Child Care and Development Block Grant

93.596 7,775,207Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development

$23,582,125TOTAL

CSBG CLUSTER

93.569 3,052,148Community Services Block Grant

$3,052,148TOTAL

HEAD START CLUSTER

93.600 141,950Head Start

93.708 155,834ARRA  Head Start

$297,784TOTAL

IMMUNIZATION CLUSTER

93.268 9,194,181Immunization Grant

93.712 264,104ARRA Immunization

$9,458,285TOTAL

MEDICAID CLUSTER

93.775 539,654State Medicaid Fraud Control Units
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93.777 2,556,910State Survey and Certification of Health Care Providers and Suppliers

93.778 693,993,768Medical Assistance Program

93.778 (2,268,197)ARRA Medical Assistance Program

$694,822,135TOTAL

TANF CLUSTER

93.558 30,190,472Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)

93.714 (460,781)ARRA  Emergency Contingency Fund for Temporary Assistance

$29,729,691TOTAL

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICE

94.003 273,452State Commissions

94.004 25,431Learn and Serve America-School and Community Based Programs

94.006 2,931,075AmeriCorps

94.006 3,384AmeriCorps:  From Regis University

94.007 55,785Planning and Program Development Grants

94.007 84,947Planning and Program Development Grants:  From Regis University

94.007 674Planning and Program Development Grants:  From Elon University NC

94.009 55,367Training and Technical Assistance

94.013 701,735Volunteers in Service to America

$4,131,850TOTAL

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

96.008 78,405Social Security-Benefits Planning, Assistance, and Outreach Program

$78,405TOTAL

DISABILITY INSURANCE/SSI CLUSTER

96.001 7,054,047Social Security - Disability Insurance

$7,054,047TOTAL

HOMELAND SECURITY

97.001 (271,615)Pilot Demonstration or Earmarked Projects

97.012 478,878Boating Safety Financial Assistance

97.017 74,287Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Competitive Grants

97.023 187,521Community Assistance Program State Support Services Element (CAP-SSSE)

97.026 (18,127)Emergency Management Institute Training Assistance
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97.036 41,290,133Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters)

97.038 10,328First Responder Counter-Terrorism Training Assistance

97.039 6,472Hazard Mitigation Grant

97.041 248,171National Dam Safety Program

97.042 2,581,092Emergency Management Performance Grants

97.043 20,267State Fire Training Systems Grants

97.045 917,036Cooperating Technical Partners

97.046 789,841Fire Management Assistance Grant

97.047 321,270Pre-Disaster Mitigation

97.052 306,577Emergency Operations Centers

97.078 186,979Buffer Zone Protection Plan (BZPP)

97.082 51,273Earthquake Consortium

97.120 9,619Border Interoperability Demonstration Project

$47,190,002TOTAL

HOMELAND SECURITY CLUSTER

97.067 2,802,181Homeland Security Grant Program

$2,802,181TOTAL

OTHER FEDERAL

95.001 175,790High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program

95.001 3,107High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program:  From City of Billings

95.001 2,042High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program:  From Lewis and Clark County

95.001 21,241High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program:  From Flathead County

$202,180TOTAL

A-160











 


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 

 

 

 


 


 


 

 


 


 


 


 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A-161










 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
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






 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




 

 

 

 

 

 

 
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









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


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







 




 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
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






 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




 

 

 

 




 

 


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







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 




 

 

 

 

 

 

 
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






 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




 


 

 




 

 

 

 
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






 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




 

 

 



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







 




 

 


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 




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 

 


 

 
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





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 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 

 

 


 


 

 

 


 


 


 


 


 
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






 

 

 

 


 




 

 

 

 

 

 


 


 


 

 

 

 

 

 


 




 

 

 

 


 
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




 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 


 


 


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
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




 

 

 

 

 

 


 


 

 


 

 

 

 

 

 


 


 

 


 

 

 


 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 
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






 

 

 

 


 

 

 




 






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STATE OF MONTANA 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 
 
Note 1.  Basis of Accounting 
 

The assistance amounts presented in the accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards of the state of Montana are generally 
expenditures or reimbursement revenues recorded on the modified accrual basis 
of accounting.  This basis recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in 
which the liability is incurred and revenues when measurable and available.  
Assistance amounts reported on a basis other than modified accrual are 
discussed below. 
 
Enterprise Fund Activity  
The Unemployment Insurance, Section 8 Voucher and Section 8 Project-based 
programs are accounted for as enterprise fund activity. Enterprise funds use the 
full accrual basis of accounting.  
 
Food Distribution Program 
The amount reported for Food Distribution programs (CFDA #10.550, #10.567, 
#10.569, #10.570 and #10.565 and #93.053) represents the dollar value of food 
commodities distributed to eligible recipients during the year.  The U.S. 
Department of Agriculture provides the current value of the commodities used by 
the state to compute the amount reported.  The amount of funds received to 
administer the program is also included in the reported amount.  Montana also 
distributes food commodities to other states in the western region of the United 
States, the value of which is excluded from the reported amounts.  During fiscal 
year 2012, Montana distributed $443,784 of food commodities under CFDA 
#10.567 to other states. 
  
The state of Montana distributed $8,505,495 in commodities in fiscal year 2012.   
The value at June 30, 2012 of commodities stored at the state’s warehouse is 
$1,952,607 for which the state is liable in the event of loss.  The state has 
insurance to cover this liability.  

 
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program  
The reported expenditures for benefits under the Supplemental Nutrition 
Assistance Program (SNAP) (CFDA No. 10.551) are supported by both regularly 
appropriated funds and incremental funding made available under section 101 of 
the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The portion of total 
expenditures for SNAP benefits that is supported by Recovery Act funds varies 
according to fluctuations in the cost of the Thrifty Food Plan, and to changes in 
participating households’ income, deductions, and assets. This condition 
prevents USDA from obtaining the regular and Recovery Act components of 
SNAP benefits expenditures through normal program reporting processes. As an 
alternative, USDA has computed a weighted average percentage to be applied to 
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the national aggregate SNAP benefits provided to households in order to allocate 
an appropriate portion thereof to Recovery Act funds. This methodology 
generates valid results at the national aggregate level but not at the individual 
state level. Therefore, we cannot validly disaggregate the regular and Recovery 
Act components of our reported expenditures for SNAP benefits. At the national 
aggregate level, however, Recovery Act funds account for approximately 16.55 
percent of USDA’s total expenditures for SNAP benefits in the Federal fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2011. 
 
Federal Surplus Personal Property 
In accordance with General Service Administration guidelines, the amount 
presented for Donations of Federal Surplus Personal Property (CFDA #39.003) is 
23.3 percent of the original acquisition cost of the property.  
 
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 
The amount presented for the Capitalization Grants for Water Pollution Control 
State Revolving Fund (CFDA #66.458) represents federal contributions, plus the 
administrative costs expended as of June 30, 2012.  The amount of loans 
outstanding as of June 30, 2012 in the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund 
Program is $192,029,731. 
 
The amount presented for the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program 
(CFDA #66.468) represents federal contributions, plus administrative costs 
expended as of June 30, 2012.  The amount of loans outstanding for the program 
as of June 30, 2012 is $109,522,038. 

 
Economic Adjustment Assistance Program 
The amount presented for the Economic Adjustment Assistance Program (CFDA 
#11.307) represents federal contributions, plus the administrative costs 
expended as of June 30, 2012. The amount of loans outstanding as of June 30, 
2012 is $350,190 in non-ARRA funds and $2,659,208 in ARRA funds. 
 
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families Loan Program 
The Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (CFDA #93.558) contributes to a 
housing loan program. The amount of housing loans outstanding as of June 30, 
2012 is $572,021.  
 
Federal Family Education Loans  
The Montana Guaranteed Student Loan Program (MGSLP) guaranteed no new 
loans for the Federal Family Education Loans (CFDA #84.032) program during 
FY2012.  The outstanding loan balance (including principal, accrued interest and 
collection cost) of loans guaranteed in previous years for which the federal 
government has imposed continuing compliance requirement was $69,397,686 
at June 30, 2012.  The dollar amount of Default Aversion Fees transferred from 
the Federal Fund to the Agency’s Operating Fund during FY2012 was $352,087 
(net).  In addition, MGSLP received or accrued revenue from the U.S. 
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Department of Education in FY2012 of  $25,059,956 for reinsurance to pay 
claims for loans due to death, disability, default and bankruptcy of the debtor. 
 
Federal Perkins Loan Program – Federal Capital Contributions 
The amount reported for the Federal Perkins Loan Program – Federal Capital 
Contributions (CFDA #84.038) represents federal contributions, plus the 
administrative costs, plus interest expended as of June 30, 2012. The amount of 
loans outstanding as of June 30, 2012 is $33,081,807. 
  
Nursing Student Loan Program  
The amount of loans outstanding for the Nursing Student Loan Program (CFDA # 
93.364) as of June 30, 2012 is $1,856,034. 
  
Nursing Faculty  Loan Program  
The amount of loans outstanding for the Nursing Faculty Loan Program (CFDA # 
93.264) as of June 30, 2012 is $144,195. 
 
Minority Health and Health Disparities Research 
The amount reported for the Minority Health and Health Disparities (CFDA 
#93.307) program includes the initial endowment and interest. The initial 
endowment was $8,437,500. 
  
Childhood Immunization Grants 
The amount reported for the Childhood Immunization Grants (CFDA # 93.268) 
includes the dollar value of vaccine doses received during FY12.  The state used 
the CDC price list to calculate the value of doses received.  During fiscal year 
2012, Montana received 165,531 vaccine doses valued at $7,824,343.  
 
Tongue River –Northern Cheyenne Tribal Loan 
The Northern Cheyenne Tribe and the Department of Natural Resources and 
Conservation entered into an agreement on July 1, 1994 in which the tribe 
agreed to loan the state of Montana $11,300,000 federal funds appropriated as 
part of the Northern Cheyenne Indian Reserved Water Rights Settlement.  The 
loan is to assist the state in financing costs of the Tongue River Dam project. No 
expenditures of tribal loan funds were incurred on project costs during FY 2012.  
The amount of the loan outstanding as of June 30, 2012 is $7,533,333. 
 
Middle Creek Dam Rehabilitation Project Loan 
The Department of Natural Resources and Conservation and the U.S 
Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) entered into an 
agreement on September 21, 1990.  The BOR agreed to loan the state of 
Montana “…a sum of money not to exceed the lesser of (1) $3,023,925  plus 
reimbursable interest during construction or (2) the actual cost of the project 
including reimbursable interest during construction...”  The total loan repayable is 
$2,990,129  and interest during construction is $281,857.  The amount, as of 
June 30, 2012, of loan outstanding is $2,278,341 and of interest during 
construction outstanding is $198,391. 
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Note 2.  Type A Federal Programs 

 
The State of Montana issues a biennial single audit report. The Single Audit 
report for the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 will be issued by March 31, 
2014.  
 
The Type A program threshold will be determined based on actual expenditures 
incurred during the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2013. The type A program 
threshold is estimated to be $16,402,237 for the biennial period.  
 

Note 3.  CFDA #  
 

The CFDA # assigned for each federal program listed in the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards was based upon agency agreements with the 
federal government and the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance in effect 
during the audit period.   

 
Programs not assigned a CFDA # in the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
were  assigned a CFDA # in the format **.999.   The first two digits represent the 
federal agency, the third digit represents the division within the federal agency. 
Also see footnote 10. 
 
Research is defined as a systematic study directed toward fuller scientific 
knowledge or understanding of the subject studied.  The term research also 
includes activities involving the training of individuals in research techniques 
where such activities utilize the same facilities as other research and 
development activities and where such activities are not included in the 
instruction function.  Development is the systematic use of knowledge and 
understanding gained from research directed toward the production of useful 
materials, devices, systems, or methods, including design and development of 
prototypes and processes.  

 
Note 4.  Federal Excess Personal Property 
 

The state of Montana receives Federal Excess Personal Property (FEPP).  The 
title to this property remains with the federal agency.  In accordance with General 
Services Administration guidelines, the amount presented in the FEPP is 23.3 
percent of the original acquisition cost of the property.  The following is a list of 
the FEPP received by the state of Montana.  The negative amount reflects 
property sold, and title transferred at public sale.  
 
CFDA #  Program FY 12 Amount  Inventory 
10.203  Payments to Ag. Exp. Station $(25,980) $176,473 
10.500  Cooperative Extension Service $(5,481) $3,151 
10.664  Cooperative Forestry Assistance $20,287 $5,985,894 
10.999  Agriculture Misc. Non. Major $0 $160,738 
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12.999  Defense Misc. Non. Major $8,563 $62,153 
43.999  NASA Misc. Non. Major $0 $664,050 
47.999  NSF Misc. Non. Major $(13,611) $253,149 

 
 
 
Note 5. Department of Defense (DOD) Firefighting Property (FFP) 
 

The Department of Natural Resources (DNRC) receives DOD Firefighting 
Property.  The title to this property is transferred to the DNRC.  In accordance 
with OMB guidelines, the amounts are presented at fair market value at time of 
receipt by DNRC.  This was determined to be 14% of the original acquisition cost 
of the property.  The following is the value of FFP received by the state of 
Montana. 

 
CFDA #  Program FY 12 Amount  Inventory 
12.999    DOD Firefighter Program $176,197  $644,338  

 
 
Note 6.  Books for the Blind and Physically Handicapped: 

 
The Montana State Library receives “talking book” machines, cassette books, 
accessories and magazines from the federal government under the Blind and 
Physically Handicapped program (CFDA #42.001). These items are then 
distributed to provide library services to blind and physically handicapped 
individuals. The federal government retains title to these items. The approximate 
value of the items in inventory (not distributed to individuals) at June 30, 2012, 
was $1,111,146. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards does not include this amount. 

 
Note 7. Unemployment Benefits 

 
The unemployment compensation system is a federal-state partnership.  State 
unemployment insurance laws must conform to certain provisions of the federal 
law.  Federal funds are expended for administrative costs.  State unemployment 
taxes must be deposited into a state account in the Federal Unemployment Trust 
Fund, and are used only to pay benefits.  State Unemployment Insurance (UI) 
funds, as well as federal funds, are included on the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards (SEFA). 
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The following schedule provides a breakdown of the state and federal portions of 
the total expenditures recorded for the Unemployment Insurance Program 
(CFDA #17.225). 
 
             
            State UI Expenditures                     $124,516,458 
            Federal UI Expenditures                     97,048,956 
            Total                           $221,565,414 
 

                                                          
Note 8.  Subgrants to State Agencies 
 

Federal assistance transferred from one Montana state agency to another 
Montana state agency is shown only once on the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards.   
 
Federal assistance received from non-state sources which are considered  
subgrants by the awarding agency are treated as pass through grants to the 
state and are reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.  

 
Note 9.  Pass through Awards to Non-State Entities  
 

The following is a list of federal funds passed through from the state of Montana 
to non-state entities for fiscal year 2012.  
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CFDA Program Title Amount Provided 
Number To Subrecipient

10.156 Federal-State Marketing Improvement Program 12,194
10.163 Market Protection and Promotion 111,157
10.169 Specialty Crop Block Grant Program 111,176
10.200 Grants for Agricultural Research, Special Research Grants 363,756
10.206 Grants for Agricultural Research & Competitive Research Grants 2,620
10.210 Food and Agricultural Sciences National Needs Graduate Fellowship Grants 23,044
10.217 Higher Education Challenge Grants 44,451
10.303 Integrated Programs 31,551
10.310 Agriculture and Food Research Initiative (AFRI) 22,739
10.500 Cooperative Extension Service 72,866
10.550 Food Donation 3,335,555
10.553 School Breakfast Program 6,785,588
10.555 National School Lunch Program 24,345,335
10.556 Special Milk Program for Children 15,493
10.557 Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for WIC 4,236,361
10.558 Child and Adult Care Food Program 833,519
10.559 Summer Food Program for Children 1,228,716
10.561 State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program 946,037
10.567 Food Distribution Program on Indian Reservations 1,565,150
10.568 Emergency Food Assistance Program (Administrative Costs) 72,620
10.572 WIC Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (FMNP) 99,525
10.579 ARRA Child Nutrition Discretionary Grants Limited Availability 45,029
10.582 Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 1,533,581
10.652 Forestry Research 356,200
10.664 Cooperative Forestry Assistance 3,613,233
10.665 Schools and Roads-Grants to States 20,486,737
10.688 ARRA Recovery Act of 2009: Wildland Fire Management 1,028,086
10.912 Environmental Quality Incentives Program 9,601
11.307 Economic Adjustment Assistance 15,546
11.555 Public Safety Interoperable Communications Grant Program 346,473
11.557 ARRA Broadband Technology Opportunities Program (BTOP) 174,779
12.002 Procurement Technical Assistance For Business Firms 689,464
12.114 Collaborative Research and Development 185,052
12.300 Basic and Applied Scientific Research 79,841
12.420 Military Medical Research and Development 337,316
12.800 Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 91,231
12.999 Defense - Miscellaneous 129,702
14.228 Community Development Block Grant/State's Program 3,909,586
14.239 Home Investment Partnerships Program 4,083,943
15.233 ARRA Forests and Woodlands Resource Management 46,480
15.242 National Fire Plan - Rural Fire Assistance 274,695
15.635 North American Wetlands Conservation Fund 14,127
15.649 Service Training and Technical Assistance (Generic Training) 77,175
15.650 Research Grants (Generic) 35,000
15.812 Cooperative Research Units Program 25,944
15.904 Historic Preservation Fund Grants-In-Aid 87,120
15.916 Outdoor Recreation-Acquisition, Development and Planning 55,000
15.929 ARRA Save America's Treasures 117,294
15.945 Cooperative Research and Training Programs – Resources of the National Park System 125,996
15.999 Miscellaneous Department of the Interior 5,380
16.017 Sexual Assault Services Formula Program 175,872
16.523 Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grants 373,128
16.540 Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention: Allocation to States 502,988
16.548 Title V Delinquency Prevention Program 50,312
16.575 Crime Victim Assistance 1,794,190
16.588 ARRA Violence Against Women Formula Grant 104,915
16.588 Violence Against Women Formula Grant 780,123
16.593 Residential Substance Abuse Treatment for State Prisoners 76,010
16.609 Community Prosecution and Project Safe Neighborhoods 64,960
16.727 Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws Program 367,943
16.738 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 851,085
16.803 ARRA - Eward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 107,741
17.235 Senior Community Service Employment Program 519,978
17.258 WIA Adult Program 717,048
17.259 WIA Youth Activities 2,027,657
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CFDA Program Title Amount Provided 
Number To Subrecipient

17.275 ARRA Prg of Compet. Grants for Worker Training and Placement in High Growth & Emerging 204,599
17.278 WIA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants 4,119
19.415 Professional and Cultural Exchange Programs - Citizen Exchanges 6,012
20.200 Federal-Aid Highways-Emergency Relief 77,611
20.205 ARRA Highway Planning and Construction 311,995
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction 15,806,064
20.219 Recreational Trails 1,086,293
20.500 Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 746,610
20.505 Federal Transit - Metropolitan Planning Grants 395,320
20.509 ARRA Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized Areas 1,235,346
20.509 Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized Areas 6,416,653
20.513 Capital Assistance Program for the Elderly and Persons with Disabilities 249,775
20.515 State Planning and Research 27,204
20.516 Job Access Reverse Commute 607,647
20.520 Paul S. Sarbanes Transit in the Parks 794,003
20.600 State and Community Highway Safety 794,083
20.601 Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving Prevention Incentive Grants 90,713
20.602 Occupant Protection 128,451
20.610 State Traffic Safety Information System Improvement Grants 62,713
20.703 Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and Planning Grants 122,474
43.001 Aerospace Education Services Program 387,154
43.009 Cross Agency Support 104,256
43.999 Miscellaneous NASA 66,144
45.025 Promotion of the Arts-Partnership Agreements 478,046
45.310 State Library Program 16,885
47.041 Engineering Grants 57,563
47.049 Mathematical and Physical Sciences 36,936
47.050 Geosciences 589
47.074 Biological Sciences 298,067
47.076 Education and Human Resources 458,505
47.078 Polar Programs 340,860
47.079 International Science and Engineering (OISE) 260,881
47.080 Office of Cyberinfrastructure 82,973
47.081 Office of Experimental Program to Stimulate Competitive Research 35,622
47.082 ARRA Trans-NSF Recovery Act Reasearch Support 866,395
59.000 SBDC/Microloan 2,875
66.716 Surveys, Studies, Investigations, Training Demonstrations and Educational Outreach 21,416
81.049 Office of Science Financial Assistance Program 120,397
81.087 Renewable Energy Research and Development 244,135
81.089 Fossil Energy Research and Development 4,120,597
81.122 Electricity Delivery and Energy Reliability, Research, Development and Analysis 386,414
84.002 Adult Education-State Grant Program 1,004,183
84.010 Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 44,863,492
84.011 Migrant Education-Basic State Grant Program 913,665
84.013 Title I Program for Neglected and Delinquent Children 124,924
84.027 Special Education - Grants to States 35,825,753
84.048 Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 3,600,342
84.133 National Institute on Disability and Rehabilitation Research 52,428
84.144 Migrant Education - Coordination Program 75,987
84.173 Special Education - Preschool Grants 1,195,409
84.186 Safe & Drug Free Schools and Communities - State Grants 69,220
84.196 Education for Homeless Children and Youth 147,819
84.213 Even Start - State Educational Agencies 74,348
84.287 Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 5,520,646
84.318 Education Technology State Grants 395,779
84.323 Special Education-State Program Improvement Grants for Children with Disabilities 134,641
84.334 Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs 1,017,755
84.358 Rural Education 224,356
84.365 English Language Acquisition Grants 657,833
84.366 Mathematics and Science Partnerships 822,321
84.367 Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 12,912,384
84.371 Striving Readers 3,083,630
84.377 School Improvement Grants 924,439
84.378 College Access Challenge Grant Program 252,000
84.386 ARRA Education Technology State Grants, Recovery Act 781,885
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CFDA Program Title Amount Provided 
Number To Subrecipient

84.389 ARRA Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act 3,849,755
84.391 ARRA Special Education Grants to States, Recovery Act 3,242,589
84.392 ARRA Special Education - Preschool Grants, Recovery Act 111,409
84.397 ARRA State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Government Services, Recovery Act -157,809
84.410 Education Jobs Fund 452,404
93.003 Public Health and Social Services Emergency Fund 119,124
93.041 Special Programs for the Aging -Title VII, Chapter 3: Prevention 13,027
93.042 Special Programs for the Aging -Title VII, Chapter 2: Long Term Care 90,580
93.043 Special Programs for the Aging - Title III, Part D:  Disease Prevention 104,888
93.044 Special Programs for the Aging - Title III, Part B: Supportive Services 1,467,506
93.045 Special Programs for the Aging - Title III, Part C: Nutrition Services 2,880,923
93.048 Special Programs for the Aging - Title IV & and Title II - Discretionary Proj. 240,224
93.052 Nation Family Caregiver Support Program 695,658
93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program 969,058
93.070 Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response 220,486
93.092 Affordable Care Act (ACA) Personal Responsibility Education Program 217,801
93.110 Maternal and Child Health Federal Consolidated Programs 38,112
93.113 Biological Response to Environmental Health Hazards 40,500
93.116 Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements for Tuberculosis Control Programs 21,856
93.126 Small Business Innovation Research 70,862
93.135 Centers for Research and Demonstration for Health Promotion and Disease Prevention 410,540
93.150 Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) 282,886
93.165 Grants to States for Loan Repayment Program 251,353
93.213 Research and Training in Complementary and Alternative Medicine 8,461
93.217 Family Planning Services 1,934,534
93.236 Grants for Dental Public Health Residency Training 164,987
93.241 State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program 744,941
93.242 Mental Health Research Grants 113,058
93.243 Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services_Projects of Regional and National Significance -72,300
93.268 Immunization Grants 392,504
93.276 Drug-Free Communities Support Program Grants 14,620
93.283 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention-Investigations and Technical Assistance 4,549,203
93.286 Discovery and Applied Research for Technological Innovations to Improve Human Health 303,148
93.301 Small Rural Hospital Improvement Grants 394,697
93.307 Minority Health and Health Disparities Research 246,571
93.389 National Center for Research Resources 904,142
93.416 ARRA - Health Careers Opportunity Program 20,000
93.500 ARRA Pregnancy Assistance Fund Program 539,320
93.505 Affordable Care Act (ACA) Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program 2,329,727
93.507 PPHF 2012 National Public Health Improvement Initiative 16,000
93.518 Affordable Care Act - Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers 25,686
93.520 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention –Affordable Care Act (ACA) – Communities Putting 47,612
93.531 PPHF 2012: Community Transfromation Grants and National Dissemination and Support for Community 

Transformation Grants - financed solely by 2012 Preventinon and Public Health Funds 77,497
93.536 The Affordable Care Act Medicaid Incentives for Prevention of Chronic Disease Demonstration Project 42,205
93.544 The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (Affordable Care Act) authorizes Coordinated 

Chronic Disease prevention and Health Promotion Program 28,250
93.556 Promoting Safe and Stable Families 677,638
93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 3,035,569
93.566 Refugee and Entrant Assistance-State Administered Programs 4,075
93.568 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 932,960
93.569 Community Services Block Grant 45,000
93.575 Child Care and Development Block Grant 5,890,230
93.590 Community-Based Family Resource and Support Grants 154,029
93.597 Grants to States for Access and Visitation Programs 100,221
93.599 Chafee Education and Training Vouchers Program (ETV) 168,227
93.600 Head Start 40,482
93.630 Developmental Disabilities Basic Support and Advocacy Grants 472,249
93.652 Adoption Opportunities 12,698
93.658 Foster Care Title IV-E 2,785,483
93.671 Family Violence Prevention and Services/Grants for Battered Women 860,249
93.674 Chafee Foster Care Independent Living 408,900
93.701 ARRA Trans-NIH Recovery Act Research Support 825,350
93.708 ARRA - Head Start 129,824
93.717 ARRA - Preventing Healthcare-Associated Infections 1,500
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CFDA Program Title Amount Provided 
Number To Subrecipient

93.721 ARRA - Health Information Technology Professionals in Health Care 97,574
93.723 ARRA - Prevention and Wellness-State, 204,118
93.767 State Children's Insurance Program 35,880
93.778 Medical Assistance Program 6,989,608
93.779 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Research, Demonstrations and Evaluations 207,740
93.824 Basic/Core Area Health Education Centers 965,079
93.853 Extramural Research Programs in the Neurosciences and Neurological Disorders 76,081
93.855 Allergy, Immunology and Transplantation Research 274,256
93.859 Biomedical Research and Research Training 197,324
93.917 HIV Care Formula Grants 644,817
93.940 HIV Prevention Activities-Health Department Based 964,946
93.959 Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 1,267,742
93.969 Geriatric Education Centers 22,272
93.974 Family Planning Service Delivery Improvement Research Grants 39,437
93.991 Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 205,977
93.994 Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States 1,158,891
94.004 Learn and Serve America - School and Community Based Program 10,098
94.006 Americorps 2,966,792
94.007 Planning and Program Development Grants 1,781
97.001 Pilot Demonstration or Earmarked Projects 67,382
97.017 Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Competitive Grants 71,942
97.026 Emergency Management Institute_Training Assistance 474,214
97.036 Public Assistance Grants 22,057,759
97.039 Hazard Mitigation Grant 756
97.042 Emergency Management Performance Grants 1,408,052
97.047 Pre-Disaster Mitigation 321,270
97.052 Emergency Operations Center 306,511
97.067 Homeland Security Grant Program 3,667,443
97.078 Buffer Zone Protection Plan (BZPP) 196,595
97.120 Border Interoperability Demonstration Project 5,762

Total 332,894,023

A-186



 
 
Note 10.  Federal Awards not having a CFDA Number 
 

The following schedule contains contract or grant numbers associated with 
awards that did not have a  CFDA number and were assigned a   XX.999  
number in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. Not all XX.999 
reported on the SEFA had a grant or contract number.  
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Federal Agency State Agency Contract or Grant Number Amount

Department of Agriculture (10)
University of Montana - MT Tech 05-CS-11010800-010 4,794
University of Montana - MT Tech 65-0325-09-034 12,646
University of Montana - MT Tech 10-CS-11015600-060 23,642
University of Montana - MT Tech 11-JV-11111136-093 29,063
University of Montana - MT Tech 12-CS-11015600-054 3,570
University of Montana - Western 09-CS-11011100-035 126

Department of Defense (12)
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman USAF:FA8650-10-C-1722 844
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman S2-10-0070-01 89,306
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman 100-SWW-T26107/PO1061970 152
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman P875-4 16,302
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman XL3413890E 91,077
University of Montana - Missoula HQ0034-10-1-0012 847,286
University of Montana - Missoula W912HZ-08-2-0006 159
University of Montana - Missoula W912DY-09-2-0001 3,836
University of Montana - Missoula W912DW-11-P-0068 4,201
University of Montana - Missoula HQ0034-10-1-0012 106,598
University of Montana - Missoula 118347-G003015 12,347
University of Montana - Missoula 11-9-11 14,856
University of Montana - MT Tech W9113M-09-C-0138 36,824
University of Montana - MT Tech N00014-08-D-0758 554,066
University of Montana - MT Tech N00014-08-D-0758 -202
University of Montana - MT Tech N00014-08-D-0758 140,213
Dept. of Environmental Quality FPN E11809 198,473

Department of Housing and Urban Renewal (14)
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman MTLHH0183-08 301,997

Department of the Interior (15)
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman P11AT00109 MSU-234/H1200090004 9,795
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman P12AC10060/MSU-239 10,000
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman F11PX04134 14,059
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman 06FC602143 9,236
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1460060025 MSU-111 663
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman L08AC14286 -1
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580070530 982
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580080407 4,131
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1212080049 2,744
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580080614 MSU-173 50,208
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580090215/MSU-180 59,291
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580090381/H1200090004/MSU190 210
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J2120090011 MSU-186 1,786
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1571091020 MSU-191 5
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580090462 MSU-200 2,249
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580090445 MSU-198 36,393
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580100209/MSU-217 7,983
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J2120100010/MSU226/H1200090004 12,197
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J2120100011 MSU-221 30,089
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J2146107010 MSU-224 5,066
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J8136100197 MSU-228 2,105
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580100341 MSU-222 7,604

Schedule of Unknown Federal CFDA Numbers (XX.999)
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Federal Agency State Agency Contract or Grant Number Amount

Schedule of Unknown Federal CFDA Numbers (XX.999)

Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580100275 MSU-223 81,357
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman J1580100410 MSU-229 12,971
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman 4W3458 Using the Living Bui 291
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman 4W3701 Internship Support a 25,977
University of Montana - Missoula L08AC14562, L09AC15312 39,836
University of Montana - Missoula L08AC14467 15,357
University of Montana - Missoula R11PX12007 11,155
University of Montana - Missoula 121G6000008 1,867
University of Montana - Missoula ES09CO0032 904
University of Montana - Missoula F11PX02128 2,000
University of Montana - Missoula J1242067023, UMT-115 865
University of Montana - MT Tech H1580070001 56,580
Dept. of Environmental Quality H1580060002 18,541
Dept. of Natural Resources H1580070001 22,532

Department of State (19)
University of Montana - Missoula S-BM800-11-GR-022 20,648
University of Montana - Missoula USIEF/OSI/2012/04 13,614

Department of Transportation (20)
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman ARI 10686-2 17,794
Department of Transportation DTFH70-11-E-00006 26,416

Department of Treasury (21)
Department of Commerce  PL110-161:95X1350 171,823

The Library of Congress (42)
Montana Historical Society 10-039 40
Montana Historical Society 11-041 475
Montana Historical Society 118208M 15,000

National Aeronautics and Space Administration (43)
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman SUBAWARD NO. Z641403 15
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman NNA08CN85A -614
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman WHRC-MSU2009 49,843
University of Montana - Missoula NNX07AJ28G 66,144
University of Montana - Missoula NNX08AG87A -3,864
University of Montana - Missoula NNX08AP59G 37,399
University of Montana - Missoula NNX08AQ63A 269,063
University of Montana - Missoula NNX09AP52G 122,019
University of Montana - Missoula NNX09AQ80G 1,479
University of Montana - Missoula NNX10AH57G 42,659
University of Montana - Missoula NNX10AN58H 27,961
University of Montana - Missoula NNX11AF18G 176,690
University of Montana - Missoula 1350935 59,821
University of Montana - Missoula 1364345 54,448
University of Montana - Missoula 1368208 84,229
University of Montana - Missoula 1388663 52,186
University of Montana - Missoula 1400503 8,674
University of Montana - Missoula 2010-2386 44,238
University of Montana - Missoula 1405851 72,819
University of Montana - Missoula 1422120 57,238

Department of Energy (81)
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman 60-5004-301 14,605
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman 60-5004-302 5,926
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Federal Agency State Agency Contract or Grant Number Amount

Schedule of Unknown Federal CFDA Numbers (XX.999)

University of Montana - Missoula DE-AC52-06NA25396 44,399
University of Montana - MT Tech DE-AC07-05ID14517 76,690
University of Montana - MT Tech DE-AC05-76RL01830 12,937
University of Montana - MT Tech 190825 30,463
University of Montana - MT Tech DE-AC07-05ID14517 23,279
University of Montana - MT Tech DE-AC07-05ID14517 33,719
University of Montana - MT Tech S111034 17,264
Dept. of Environmental Quality DE-AC05-76RL01830, contract #136136 38,923
Dept. of Environmental Quality Case US District Crt Kansas MDL378 5,046
Dept. of Environmental Quality Case 78-1035 US District Court DC 5,788

Department of Education (84)
Office of Public Instruction ED-08-CO-0076 214,749

Department of Health and Human Services (93) 
Montana State Univ. - Bozeman HISI244201200288P 10,001
Public Health and Human Services HHSF223000840148C 43,218
University of Montana - MT Tech 200-2009-M-29841 -78
University of Montana - MT Tech 200-2010-M-33703 3,514
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